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To invest in businesses with high growth
potential so as to increase shareholder value.
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total assers R /5. 723

HKS' D00 722,621

total share capital and reserves G, 002 55

HK$000 668,920

profit attributable to shareholders P 14,091
HK$'000 90,162

profit before taxation P 18,695
HKS'000 74,581

winover D 105.254
HK$'C00 > 79,010

net tangible assets per share (HKE  $1.63 $1.75
aarmings per share (HK cents) 3.68 cants 23.53 cents




PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

The Group
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$000 HK$ 020 HK$ 000
Turnover 105.254 79,010 84,518 72,147 84,863
Profit before taxation 18,695 74,581 7,370 27,354 33,605
Income tax (2,488) 20,871 - 15 -
Profit for the year 16,207 95,452 7.370 27,369 33,605
Aitributable to:
Equity shareholders of the Company 14,081 90,152 5,392 26,519 33,108
Minority interests 2,116 5,300 1,978 €50 499
Profit for the year 16,207 95,452 7,370 27,569 33,605
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of
the Company attributable to the year;
Final Dividend Proposed after the
halance Sheet Date 11,494 22,988 11,494 11,494 11,494
Basic earnings per share (MK cents) 3.68 2353 1.41 692 8.64
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BALANCE SHEETS

The Group
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000
Plant and equipment 7,626 6,587 4,785 3.346 5,255
Intangible assets 39,032 302 343 407 473
Interest in associate 10,045 - - - -
Deferred tax assets 17,906 21,083 - - -
Current assets 674,114 694,649 637,290 643,772 623,745
Total Assets 748,723 722,621 642,418 647,525 629,473
Current Liabilities (50,509} (20,271) {24.596) (25,248) {23,408}
Total Assets less Current Liabilities 698,214 702,350 617,822 622,277 606,065
Net Assets 698,214 702,350 617,822 622,277 606,065
Capital and Reserves
Share capital 383.126 383,126 383,126 383,126 383,126
Reserves 279,428 285,794 206,655 213,038 197,727
Total Equity Attributable to Equity
Shareholders of the Company 662,554 668,920 589,781 596,164 580,853
Minority Interests 35,860 33,430 28,041 26,113 25,212
Total Equity 698,214 702,350 617,822 622,277 606,065
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On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present
the Group's results for the financial year ended 31 December
2007 (“FY2007").

The Group reported an improvement in revenue to HK$105.3
million, up 33.2%, from HK$79.0 million in the previous year.
However, net profit attributable to the equity shareholders

of the Company of HK$14.1 million declined by 84.4% from
HK$90.1 million recorded in the previous year.

Whilst MindChamps Holdings Pte. Ltd. {'MindChamps’) and
the Group's hospitality related services contributed additional
revenues of HK$22.7 million and HK$6.2 million respectively
to the Group, the Group's result was negatively impacted

by valuation of the Group's trading securities to fair values
as at 31 December 2007, which was marked down by
HK$44.0 million, and the absence of the one-off recognition
of deferred tax benefits amounting to HK$21.0 million as
compared with the previous year.

The Group has always been seeking investment opportunities
with strong growth potential. During the year under review,
this strategy culminated in the following two investments:

1, AB0% equity interest in MindCharmps on 1 June 2007, a
company principally engaged in offering "How-to-Learn”
programmes, being specialised accelerated learning end
memgerisation technique programmes, 1o children and
young people, ranging from pre-schocl to tertiary level.

During the year under review, MindChamps has recorded
strong growth in student enrollment and recognised
revenue. Although the programme fees are collected

at the point of enroliment, MindChamps recognises
revenue on a straight-line basis over the period of

the course as the students complete each part of the
programme. Since our investment in MindChamps on 1
June 2007, it successfully enrolled over 3,000 students
in its programmes during the period under review.
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2. A 40% participation in Tune Hospitalit Investments
FZCO ("Tune Hospitality’) established n 12 July 2007
to develop and own {in whole or in pa1) a portfolio of
limited service {or "no frills™) "Tune” twanded hotels
across the countries in the ASEAN region.

Since the establishment of the HK$390.3 miflion {US$50
million} joint venture in July 2007, Tuns Hospitality

has already secured severa! locations for the "Tune”
branded limited service hotels. As at 31 December
2007, the Board of Directors of Tune Hospitality has
approved the development of six sites located in
Malaysia and Indonesia, with a total ejuity commitment
of approximately HK$62.4 million (US$8 million). Of

the approved sites, a total of four havez been secured
through executed sale and purchase agreements as at
the year end.

in the United States, the Group, through its 85% subsidiary,
SWAN Holdings Limited Group {"SWAN"), traded profitably
as the hospitality industry in the US has recorded another
year of healthy growth in 2007, Many of our client hotels
had performed well with their 2007 revenues and operating
profits exceeding grior year. This improve ment in client
hotels' operating results has benefited SWAN’s hotel
rmanagement business unit, Richfield, as ts fee income

is aligned to revenue and profits of its hotel customers.
Richiield’s fee income was also boosted by the signing of 4
new multi-year hotel contracts during the year under review.
As at 31 December 2007, Richfield managed a portfolio of
27 hotels representing more than 5,900 rooms.

Basic earnings per share for the year undar review was
HK3.68 cents calculated on 383,125,524 ordinary shares

in issue during the year. The Group’s Net Tangible Assets
backing per share decreased to HK$1.63 as at 31 December
2007 from HK$1.75 as at 31 December 2006. The Board
propesed a final dividend of HK3 cents per share for the year
under review.



Notwithstanding the two investments made in the
course of the year, the Group still has significant
cash resources to capitalise on any good investment
opportunities that may arise in 2008 amidst a tight

credit environment.

PROSPECTS

As the US economy is clearly expected to slow down in
2008, we will adopt a prudent approach in managing the
SWAN businesses by ensuring costs are kept in line with
the level of business activities. Richfield's new contracis
signed in 2007 will continue to generate steady fee income
in 2008 and will positively impact the revenue stream of
SWAN. Going forward, Richfield will be focusing on securing
management contracts for larger hotels that generate higher
fees and consequently better margins.

Having established a strong presence and reputation in
Singapore, MindChamps is planning to offer its “How-1o-
Learn” Programmes in overseas markets including Hong
Kang in 2008, 1n addition, MindCharmps is expanding its
product line by setting up a pre-schoclfkindergarten in their
existing premises in Singapore.

Tune Hospitality continues to aggressively identify suitable
and cost effective development sites in the ASEAN

region particularly in Malaysia, Indonesia, Thailand and the
Philippines. During the course of 2008, Tune Hospitality
expects to secure additional sites and have a substantial
portion of the entire HK$390.3 million (US$50 million} of
shareholders’ capital committed {of which the Group will
contribute 40%). Development and planning work have
already commenced on several of the secured sites. The
managemens team expects a few properties to open by the
end of 2008. We expect that a significant number of sites
will be operational by 2009,

Notwithstanding the two investments made in the course
of the year, the Group still has significant cash resources o
capitalise on any good investment opportunities that may
arise in 2008 amidst a tight credit environment. We intend
to continue seeking out investment opportunities that offer
strong growth potential.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to thank our
customers, business partners, shareholders, management
and staff for their continued support during this past vear.

KWEK LENG BENG

Chairman

25 February 2008
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HOSPITALITY

SWAN HOLDINGS LIMITED GROUP ("SWAN").
SWAN, a ‘CES’ 85%-owned subsidiary, is a multi-service
company providing integrated and affordable solutions
to the hospitality industry. SWAN ¢an help hoteliers
manage their properties smarter, more competitively,
and more cost effectively, all under the banner of one
coemprehensive service company.

The SWAN team offers a host of value-added services and
expertise in all facets of hote! operation through its five
business divisions: Richfield, Sceptre, The Elise Group,
Shield and Source.

Richfield Hospitality Services

(Hotel Management)

Richfield is an established independent hotel management
company. For over three decades, Richfield has
successfully managed and skillfuily developed a wide
range of hotel assets. We have managed properties of

all complexities including premier resorts, full service
hotels and limited service properties. As at 31 December
2007, Richfield operated 27 hotels in the US representing
in excess of 5,900 rooms under brand names from

the leading hotel franchise companies including Hilton,
Starwood, Intercontinental and Choice. We also operate
several independent (non-rand affiliated) properties.

Every client’s property benefits from our senicr
management's combined 140 years of experience and
industry expertise. Each assignment begins by determining
the needs of the owner. We review the property’s prior
performance, identify opportunities and assess challenges.
Richfield then tailors the appropriate solution to deliver
immediate visible improvement in the performance of

the property.
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With our resources, processes, systems, and technologies,
aur results consistently exceed clients’ expactations.

The result is increased profitability to the owner and an
upgraded and enhanced experience for each guest. For the
past 30 years, Richfield has revitalized over 250 properties,
ranging from independent, boutique hotels to large, city-
center properties and virtually every industry brand.

Richfield achieves superior operating results through
intense focus on its strong commitment {¢ guests,
employees and owners. In managing these hotels, wea
fully utilize the strength of cur company’s resources and
years of experience (o increase the value of each property,
making it better positioned in its market with increased
profitability to the owner and an upgraded and enhanced
experience for each guest.

Services offered by Richfield covers all aspacts of hotel
management including:

* Annual Business Planning

¢ Qperations Improvement

¢ Sales & Marketing Consulting

* Revenue and Channel Management

* Management of Franchise Affiliation

* Human Resources Management

* Accounting and Budgeting

Consistent efforts to grow client relationships and
maximise profitability of the hotels have culminated in
the successful positioning of Richfield as a fundamental
component of SWAN.

Sceptre Hospitality Resources

{Reservation Distribution}

Sceptre is the hospitality industry's leading expert for online
channel marketing and revenue/channel-management
consulting. By increasing exposure of its client hotels



throughout the various electronic channels and optimizing
its vast channel-marketing reach, Sceptre helps hotels to
increase revenues and create greater brand awareness
while improving asset value for owners and operators.
By creating a customnized, strategic e-distribution strategy
for its partner hotels, Sceptre maximizes sales production
and marketing exposure through the various on-ling
channels and increases each hotel's presence throughout
the global-distribution systems, the Internet and property

direct sources. Sceptre's e-distribution power and expertise

is unsurpassed, utilizing state-of-the-art reservations
technology and offering a strong commitment to customer-
service and support.

At Sceptre, we distinguish ourselves from cur competiters

by providing:

+ Hospitality Experts. Our staff of professionals has an
extensive industry background and can fully appreciate
your needs.

» Customer Service. We provide focused support of
each client to ensure maximum production from the
various channels.

+ Monthly Account Analysis. Each month, we analyze
and review the performance of individual hotels
and work with the customer to ensure that revenue
objectives are met.

» Affordable Pricing. With transaction-fixed pricing,
the client will enjoy low costs without compromising
support.

« Flexibility. Our electronic distribution channel can
quickly address changes, meeting the needs of the
most unique and discerning customer.

« Personalized Attention. With a ratio of 50:1 clients
to Strategic Distribution Managers, our clients’ unique
needs are immediately met.

The current portfolio of services includes

» Distribution Censulting and Analysis

e Electronic Markating and Channel Management
« Global Distribution System Representation

* \Website Bocking Engine

s Private-label Voice Reservations

» Consortia RFP Submission Service

The combination of Sceptre's expert assistance, and
its array of services and products, can greatly enhance
its clients' abilities to achieve significant increases in
reservations derived through the various electronic
distribution channels.

The Elise Group

{Revenue Management Consultancy)

In May 2006, SWAN launched The Elise Group, a
consuliancy group with a focus on revenue management
for the lodging markei. The Elise Group adopts a
coltaborative partnership approach to heltp owners,
developers, and hotel management groups and property
level teams improve the top line revenue for their hotels,
white adding value to the cwnerships' assets.

The Elise Group's consulting projects are for a minimum
of 12 months and during the consulting period, the team
focuses on the following areas:

e FElise Business Analysis

* Elise Revenue Optimization

« Elise Positioning Enhancements
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Shield (Risk Management)

Shield provides risk management services to hotels.
Recognizing the unique risk profile of the hotel industry,
Shield advises hotel management teams on how to
lower its overall cost of insurance through pro-active
programmes to mitigate risks at their hotels,

Source (Purchasing and Procurement)

Source delivers purchasing and procurement services to
hotels with focus on delivering lower operating expenses
to hotels and higher return on investments to owners.

Source offers hotaliers significant cost savings and
economies of scale through its extensive number of
national account agreemants which are organized to
support specific areas of need within each hotel such
as Food and Beverage, Rooms Operations, Engineering
and Energy, Administrative, Furnishings, Fixtures, and
Equipment.

TUNE HOSPITALITY INVESTMENTS FZCO
(*“TUNE HOSPITALITY")

In July 2007, CES assumed a 40% stake in Tune Hospitality
with a commitment to invest up to US$20 million as its share
of the US$50 million Tune Hospitality requires to develop

and own a chain of 25 to 30 "Ture" branded hotels across
the countries in the ASEAN region. The other joint venture
parnners are Istithmar PJSC, the investment arm of Dubai
World {40%) and Tune Hotels.com (20%). Tune Hotels.com is
the owner of the brand and operator of the properties.

A “Tune” Hotel is a "no-frills” hotel targeted to meet the
growing demand for a affordable and consistent quality
accommodation by the value conscious travellers in

the South East Asian countries. Each “Tune” Hotel has
approximately 100 to 200 rooms in prime city centre or
beach front locations. Key elements of a “Tune” Hote!
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Conternporary fagada of Tune Hotels

include a five star bed, electronic key card entry system
and en-suite power shower in a space efficient room of
approximately 11 square meters, Certain iterms such as air-
conditioning, towels and bathroom amenities are available
at minimal additional charges. Customers can enjoy rates
as low as US$3 per night by booking directly from the
wehsite: www.tunehotels.com, Most “Tune” Hotels

will also offer a 24-hour convenience store and a popular
branded food and beverage outlet in the lobbv.

EDUCATION

MINDCHAMPS HOLDINGS PTE. LTD.

On 1 Jure 2007, CES acquired a 50% stake in
MindChamps Holdings Pte. Ltd. {“MindChamos”).
MindChamps is @ mind development institute dedicated to
developing the learning capacity of all young people — from
pre-school to tertiary level. Students are trained in the

art of learning how-to-learn and the developmant of their
charmpion mindset.

MindChamps coltaborates with Professor Allan Snyder,
eminent neuroscientist and Fellow of the Royal Society,
the prestigious academy of science that counted Sir Isaac
Newton and Albert Einstein as its distinguished Feliows,
Professor Snyder heads the Centre for the Mind at

the University of Sydney which is world-renowned for

its research into the human mind's *hidden abilities’,
Professor Snyder's findings and ongoing resezrch on
Learning, Creativity and the Champion Mindsé&t form an
integral part of MindChamps' programmes.

The learning how-to-learn strategies and technigues
taught in MindChamps’ specialist programmes: are
collectively known as New Brain Software®, consisting
of Information Control and Application Skills, otherwise
known as the 4 “A’s of Active Learning™ - Active




My Kwek Leng Beng (Chairman and Managing Cirector, CES)
with Mr David Chiam (Founder, Chairman and CEQ, MindChamps)

Understanding, Active Storage, Active Recall and
Application {Analysis, Evaluation & Synthesis).

In addition to the New Brain Software®, MindChamps'
programmes may also include a persenal empowerment
component (Empower U™/Young Champions®). a
communication and interpersonal skills component {Oral
Preparation®/Confident Communicator®) as well as a
parenting workshop component (Parenting Strategies
Workshaop) that assists parents in the creation of a
supportive, study-friendly home gnvironment.

MindChamps' programmes are designed to develop the
love of learning in students, helping them to learn with
active understanding and developing the confidence and
mindset to achieve success in school and in life. The key
objectives of MindChamps’ programmes are to make
learning fun for the children, motivate them and instill

a high leve! of confidence in them when approaching
challenges in schoo!. In addition, a vital part of the
programmes is imbuing in the minds of the children a
‘championship’ mentality — a motivation to want to excel
and to be a champion. These programmes are conducted
over 20-30 weeks.

In 2™ guarter of 2007, MindChamps introduced a
revoluticnary method that enables a child to better master
curriculurn content. Called the Optimal Flow Method™, it
links all the disparate elements of a particular subject into
a unified whole, hence promeoting active understanding

of the subject. Optimal Fiow Method is an essential
component of our Exam Content Mastery programme.

MindChamps currently offers the following specialist

programmes in Singapore:

s My Little Champ ™ for Pre-Schoolers
(3 to 4 years old}

» Future Champs™ for Pre-Schoolers
(5 to 6 years old)

* Sparks of Genius® for Primary 1 & 2
(7 to 8 years old)

s Springboard 2 Success® for Primary 3 & 4
{9 to 10 years old}

+ Stairway 2 Championship® for Primary 6 & 6
(11 t0 12 years cld)

e Success 4 Life® for Secondary to Tertiary Level
(13 years old and above}

» Exam Content Mastery™ for PSLE and O-Level
{12 and 16 years old)

MindChamps intends to continue to strengthen its leading
position in Singapore and embark on its expansion plans
into the region and the rest of the world, beginning with
Hong Kong in 2008.
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As at 31 December 2007, the Group’s total assets stood
at HK$748.7 million, increased from HK$722.6 million as
at 31 December Z2006.

GROUP PERFORMANCE

As reported in the Chairman's statement, the Group had acquired equity interests in
two new businesses relating to the provision of education services by MindChamps
and the development and operation of a portfolio of limited service “Tune” branded
hotels by Tune Hospitality. Whilst MindChamps had commenced business on 1 June
2007, the hotals to be developed by Tune Hospitality are expected to be operational
in year 2008 only.

Consequently, the Group recorded higher revenue of HK$105.3 million, an increase
of 33.2%, as compared with HK$79.0 million in the previous year with the additional
revenue of HK$22.7 million contributed by the newly-acquired 50% equity interest
in MindChamps with effect from 1 June 2007. Also, the hospitality-related services
had reported improved revenue, up by HK$6.2 million, which was partially oifset by
lower interest and dividend income, down by HK$2.6 million, as compared with the
previous year.

However, the Group reported a lower net profit attributable to the equity
shareholders of the Company of HK$14.1 million, a decrease of 84.4% as compared
with HX$90.1 miliion in the previous year, The lower Group’s profit can be attributed
mainly to the unrealised losses including lower translation exchange gain sustained
as a result of remeasuring the Group's trading securities to fair value as at 31
December 2007 and the absence of the one-off recognition of deferred tax benefits
amounting to HK$21.0 million in the previous year.

(n line with the accounting treatment, net realised and unrealised losses of HK$16.1
million was recorded as a result of remeasuring the Group’s trading securities

to fair value as at 31 December 2007 as compared with such gains of HK$27.9
million reported as at the end of the previous financial year-end. Accordingly, a total
decrease of HK$44.0 million was recorded as compared with the previous year. This,
together with a lower net translation exchange gain, down by HK$10.8 million, had
decreased the Group's profit for the year under review.

The Group's hospitality related services operating mainly in the United States
recorded higher revenue of HK$53.2 million, up by 13.2% as compared with
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HK$47.0 million achieved in the previous year mainly due to increased fee income from
the US’s hotel management business unit. For the year under review, the fee income was
HK$32.4 million up by 28% or HK$7.1 million from HK$25.3 milion. Accordingly, the pre-
tax profit contribution to the Group’s result had improved to HK$12.6 million, up by 64.6%,
from HK$7.6 million recorded in the previous year.

The Group’s 50% share of revenue and pre-tax profit achieved by MindChamps over the
7-month period ended 31 December 2007 amounted to HK$22.7 million and HK$1.2
million respectively. On the other hand, the Group’s 40% share of loss in Tune Hospitality
amounted to HK$2.5 million comprising mainly professional and transaction fees in
connection with the acquisition of hotel sites for development.

The analysis of the Group's revenue and profit and loss from operations by business and
geographical segments are set out in notes to the financial statements.

Financial Position

As at 31 December 2007, the Group's total assets stood at HK$748.7 million, increased
from HK$722.6 million as at 31 December 2006. The Group's net tangible asset (“NTA")
per share was HK$1.63 as at 31 December 2007, lower by 6.9% from HK$1.75 as at 31
December 20086.

The Group reports its results in Hong Kong dollars and it is the objective of the Group to
preserve its value in terms of Hong Kong dollars.

Cash Flow and Borrowings

For the year under review, net cash generated from cperations emounted to HK$25.5
million. The Group received total interest and dividend income of HK$31.6 million and paid
a total dividend of HK$23.0 million to the shareholders of the Company. Consequently, net
cash generated {rom operating activities amounted to HK$33.8 million.
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On the investing activities, net proceeds of HK$59.5 million was realised from the
sale of rrading securities and a total amount of HK$51,0 million and HK$16.7 million
were utilised to acquire equity interests in MindChamps and Tune Hospitality and to
purchase properties held for resale respectively.

Accordingly, the total cash generated from operating and investing activities
amounted to HK$23.9 million which together with a favourable exchange translation
gain of HK$2.7 million resulted in a higher Group's cash and cash equivalents of
HK$513.8 million as at 31 December 2007, up from HK$487.2 million as at 31
December 2006.

The Group has no borrowings for the year under review,

Treasury Activities

Majority of the Group’s cash is held in United States dollar, Sterling Pound and

Euro doilar deposits. It is the Group’s view to maximise returns to shareholders.

We need a balanced portfolic and hence a portion of its portfolic is held in various
currencies. The currency profile of cash and cash equivalent is set out in the notes to
the financial statements. We will closely maonitor the Group's exposure 10 currency
movement and take the appropriate action when necessary.

Directors and Employees

As at 31 December 2007, the Group had a total of 48 employees excluding
employees from MindChamps, up from 46 as at the end of the last financial year
ended 31 Decernber 2006. There were 81 employees from MindChamps as at 31
December 2007.

The total payroll costs in¢luding the Group's 50% share of MindChamps for the year
under review was HK$36.6 million up by 28.0% as compared with HK$28.6 million
in year 2006. The Group has a competitive wage and benefits package which are
critical to maintaining a level of consistent and quality services.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

{A)

(B)

€

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Directors and management are committed to maintaining high standards of corporate governance, in line with
the principles set out in the Appendix 14 of the Listing Rutes of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited — “"Code
on Corporate Governance Practices” (" Appendix 147).

In the opinion of the Directors, save as disclosed below, the Company has complied with Appendix 14 throughout
the year under review.

As disclosed in 2006 Annual Report, the Company does not fully comply with the code provision A.4.1 in Appendix
14. To satisfy the requirements under such code provision, all the non-executive directors retired in the annual
general meeting held on 20 April 2007 {*2007 AGM™) and offered themselves for re-election. All the retiring non-
executive directors were re-glected in the 2007 AGM for a specific term of thres years. Under the code provision
A.1.8, if a substantial shareholder or a director has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the board
which the board has determined to be material, the matter should not be dealt with by way of circulation orby a
committee (except an appropriate board cormmittee set up for that purpose pursuant to a resolution passed in a
board meeting} but a board meeting should be held. As it was impractical to hold a full board meeting on that day,
after full explanation of the connected transaction was provided to the non-executive directors by the executive
directors, a written resolution regarding the continuing connected transaction for the provision of property
management services had been approved by all directors, including independent non-executive directors. The said
written resolution was passed on 8 January 2007. The details of the continuing connected transaction were fully
disclosed in the press announcement dated 8 January 2007,

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the “Maodel Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” as set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Model Code”). All directors have
confirmed that they have complied with the Model Code throughout the year under review.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
The Board currently comprises 11 Directors, of which 6 are executive Directors, 2 are non-executive Directors and 3
are independent non-executive Directors. The members of the Board are as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Kwek Leng Beng {Chairman and Managing Director}
Mr. Vincent Yeo Wee Eng {Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Kwek Leng Joo

Mr. Kwek Leng Peck

Mr. Gan Khai Choon

Mr. Lawrence Yip Wai Lam

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hong Ren
Hon. Chan Bernard Charnwut

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lo Ka Shui

Mr. Lee Jackson @ Li Chik Sin

Mr. Teoh Teik Kee
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(C) BOARD OF DIRECTORS {CONT'D)
The biographical detaifs of the Directors and Senior Management are contained in the Directors section of the
Directors’ Report.

The Company has received from each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence pursuant to Rufe 3,13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited {the “Listing Rules”) and the Company still censiders such Directors to be independent.

The Board's primary functions are to set corporate policy and overail strategy for the Group and to provide effective
oversight of the management of the Group’s business and affairs. Apart from its statutory responsitilities, the Board
also approves the strategic plans, key operational issues, investments and loans, reviews the financizl performance
of the Group and evaluates the performance and compensation of senior management. Thase functions are either
carried out directly by the Board or through committees established by the Board.

A “Schedule of Matters Reserved for Decision by Board™ (the "Schedule”) has been adopted by the Company.
The Board shall review the iterns in the Schedule on a periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the
needs of the Group. The Directors, individually or as a group, are entitled 1o take independent professional advice,
at the expense of the Company, in furtherance of their duties and in the event that circumstances warrant it. A
“Guidelines for Seeking Independant Professional Advice™ has been adopted by the Board.

The Company conducts regular scheduled Board meetings on a quarterly basis. Additional meetings are convened
as and when circumstances warrant. The attendance of individual Directors at Board, Audit Committee and
Remuneration Committee meetings in 2007, as well as the frequency of such meetings, is set out below:

Audit Remunerztion
Name of Directors Board Committee Commitiee
Executive Directors
| Mr. Kwek Leng Beng Ad)
! Mr. Vincent Yee Wee Eng 4(4) Hn
| Mr. Kwek Leng Joo 44
Mr. Kwek Leng Peck 2{4)
Mr. Gan Khai Choon 3(4)
Mr. Lawrence Yip Wai Lam A4
Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hong Ren 34}
Hon. Chan Bernard Charnwut 4(4} 142)
Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. Lo Ka Shui 4{4)
Mr. Lee Jacksen @ Li Chik Sin 34) 1(2) 1M
Mr. Tech Teik Kee 4{4) 2(2) 1(1)

The Nomination Committee did not convene any meeting in 2007 as there was no appointment of new director in
2007. Meeting will be convened in due course.
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D)

(E)

(F)

G)

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Board is Mr. Kwek Leng Bang while the Chief Executive Officer {("CEQ") is Mr. Vincent Yeo
Wee Eng. There is a clear division of responsibilities between the Chairman and the CEQ, in that the Chairman
bears primary responsibility for the workings of the Board, by ensuring its effective function, while the CEQ bears
executive responsibility for the Company’s business, the management of the day-to-day operations of the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors were not appointed for a specific term but were subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election at annual general meeting in accordance with the Articles. At the 2007 AGM, all the retiring non-
executive directors were re-elected for a term of 3 years.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE (“RC")
The RC was established in May 2005 and comprises 2 independent non-executive Directors and 1 executive
Director. The members of the RC are as follows:

Mr. Tech Teik Kee Chairman {Independent Non-executive}
Mr. Lee Jackson @ Li Chik Sin Member {Independent Non-executive)
Mr. Vincent Yeo Wee Eng Member (Executive)

The primary objective of the RC is to consider management recommendation, and deterrine the framework or
broad policy for remuneration for the Directors and the senior key executives, including the chief executive officer
of the Company. Mo Director or any of his associates may be involved in any decisions as o his own remunaration.

The duties of the RC also include:

(al To review and recommend the criteria for assessing employee performance, which should reflect the
Company’s business objectives and targets; and

{b)  To consider the annual performance bonus for executive Directors, Senior Management, and the general staff,
having regard to their achievements against the performance criteria and by reference to market norms, and
make recommendation to the Board.

The Company's remuneration policy comprises primarily a fixed component (in the form of a base salary) and a
variable component {which includes bonus and share option grants), taking into account other faciors, the individual
performance, the performance of the Company and industry practices.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (“NC”)
The NC was established in August 2005 and comprises 3 independent non-executive Directors, 1 non-executive
Director and 1 executive Director. The members of the NC are as follows:

Dr. Lo Ka Shui Chairman {Independent Non-executive)
Mr. Teoh Teik Kee Member {Independent Non-executive}
Mr. Lee Jackson @ Li Chik Sin Member (Independent Non-executive)
Hon. Chan Bernard Charnwut Member (Non-executive)

Mr. Vincent Yeo Wee Eng Member (Executive}
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(G) NOMINATION COMMITTEE {(“NC") {(CONT'D}
The duties of the NC include:

al  Toreview and monitor the struciure, size and compeosition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of
the Board and make recommendations 10 the Board with regard to any proposed changes;

{o)  To identify individuals suitably qualified to become Board members and select, or make recommzndations to
the Board on the selection of, individuals nominated for directorships;

{c} To assess the independence of Directors, having regard to the requirements under the Listing Rules; and

{d) To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of
Directors and succession planning for Directors in particular, the Chairman and the CEQ.

(H) AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION
The Group's external auditors are KPMG, Singapore {"KPMG™). During the year under review, the Group has
engaged KPMG (inctuding any entity that is under common control, ownership or management with K>MG or any
entity that a reasonable and informed third party having knowledge of all relevant information would reasonably
conclude as part of KPMG nationally or internationally) to provide the following services and their respective fees
charged are set out as befow:

Fees charges

Type of services 2007 2006

HK$'000 HK$'000
Audit fee for the Group 1,030 822
Taxation services 17 50
QOthers 455 296
Total 1,502 1,168

{(h  AUDIT COMMITTEE (“AC")
The Company has an AC which was established in compliance with Rute 3.21 of the Listing Rules for the purposes
of reviewing and providing supervision over the Group's financial reporting process and internal contrels. The AC
comprises 2 independent non-executive Directors and 1 non-executive Director of the Company. The members of
the AC are as follows:

Mr. Lee Jackson @ Li Chik Sin Chairman {Independent Non-executive)
Mr. Teoh Teik Kee Mernber independent Non-executive)
Hon. Chan Bernard Charnwut Member (Non-executive)

The principal respensibility of the AC is to assist the Board in maintaining a high standard of corporate governance,
particularly by providing an intependent review of the effectiveness of the Company’s financial reporting process
and material internal controls, including financial, operational, compliance and risk management controls. Other
duties within its written terms of reference include:
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AUDIT COMMITTEE (“AC”) (CONT'D}

(@) To review with management and, where appropriate, with the external auditors of the half-year and annual
financial statements before submission to the Board to ensure their completeness, accuracy and fairness;

{6} Toreview, on an annual basis, of the scope and results of the audit and the independence and objectivity of
the external auditors; and

¢ To review the internal audit programme, ensure co-ordination between the internal and external auditors, and
ensure that the internal audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate standing within the Group.

In 2007, the AC held 2 meetings in February 2007 and July 2007. in the meeting held in February 2007, the Annual
Report and Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31 Decernber 2006 were reviewed together with the
external auditors. In the July 2007 meeting, the tnterim Financial Report for the 6 months ended 30 June 2007 was
reviewed. The adequacy of internal contrals was also discussed in these meetings. The AC conciuded that there
were no major issues which the AC considered that the Board should be informed after the 2 AC meetings.

FINANCIAL REPORTING
The Directors acknowledge that they are primarily responsible for the preparation of the financial statements which
give a true and fair view and that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied consistently.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, there is no uncertainty relating to events or conditions that may cast
significantly doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the Group's system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness. During the
year under review. the Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the effectiveness of the Group’s system
of internal controls, including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.

Internal Audit was carried out on a systematic rotational basis based on the risk assessments of the operation and

controls, and reports were presented to the Audit Committee at least twice every year on significant findings on
internal control system.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

31 December 2007

The Directars have pleasure in submitting their annual report together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2007.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

City e-Solutions Limited (the "Company”) is a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands and domiciled in Hong
Kong. lis registered office is at P.O. Box 309, Grand Cayman, Cayman |slands, British West Indies and principal place of
business at Room 2803, 28" Floos, Great Eagle Centre, 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Company comprise those of investment holding and the provision of consultancy services.

The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

The analysis of the principal activities and geographical locations of the operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
{the “Group”) during the financial year are set out in nota 12 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2007 and the state of the Company's and the Group’s affairs as
at that date are set out in the financial statements on pages 37 to 80.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES
Profits attributable to shareholders, before dividends, of HK$16,207,000 (2006: HK$95,452,000) have been transferred to
reserves. Other movements in reserves are set out in note 23 to the financial statements.

The Directors of the Company have proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2007 of HK3 cents per
share (2006: HK6 cents per share). No interim dividend was paid for the year endad 31 December 2007 (2006: Nil cents).

CHARITABLE DONATIONS
During the year, no charitable contributions (2006: HKSNil) were made by the Group.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Movements in plant and equipment are set out in note 13 to the financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
The Company did not issue any shares during the financial year.

The Company has a share option scheme (the 2005 Scheme") which was adopted on 27 Aprit 2005 {"Adoption Date™)
whereby the directors of the Company are authorised, at their discretion, to invite employees of the Group, including
directors of any company in the Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares of the Company. The purpose of the
scheme is to pravide an opporiunity for employees of the Group to acquire an equity participation in the Company and 1o
encourage them to work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the Company and
its shareholders as a whole. Under the 2005 Scheme, the maximum number of shares that may be granted by the
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SHARE CAPITAL {(CONT'D}

Directors shall not exceed 10% of the share capital of the Company in issue at the Adoption Date unless the Company
abtains a fresh approval from its Shareholders. The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exarcise of
all outstanding options and yet 1o be exercised under the 2005 Scheme and any other option schemel(s) of the Company
shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. The subscription price of shares under the
20065 Scheme shal! not be less than the highest of: (i) the official closing price of the Shares as stated in daily quotations
sheet of the Stock Exchange on the Offer Date; {ii) the average of the official closing price of the Shares as stated in
daily guotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the & business days immediately preceding the Qffer Date; and (iii)
the neminal value of a Share. The Executive Share Option Scherne (the "1997 Scheme") adopted by the Company on 11
June 1897 was terminated upon the 2005 Scheme becoming effective.

Throughout the financial year, no share option was granted and outstanding.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the turnover attributable to the Group's five largest customers combined was about 15% (200€; 22%)
of the Group's turnover and the largest customner, included therein accounted for approximately 3% (2006: 5%). The
nercentage of purchases attributable to the Group's five largest suppliers cambined was about 37% (2006: 90%.) and the
largest supplier included therein accounted for approximately 18% (20086: 29%).

At no time during the year have the directors or any shareholders of the Company {which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capitall had any interest in these major customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the financial year were as follows;
Executive Direciors
Mr. Kwek Leng Beng {Chairman and Managing Director)
Mr. Vincent Yeo Wee Eng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Kwek Leng Joo
Mr. Kwek Leng Peck
Mr. Gan Khai Choon
Mr. Lawrence Yip Wai Lam

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Wong Hong Ren
Hon. Chan Bernard Charnwut

Independent Non-executive Diractors
Dr. Lo Ka Shui

Mr. Lee Jackson @ Li Chik Sin

Mr. Teoh Teik Kee

In accordance with Article 116 of the Articles of Association of the Company, one third of the present Directors viill retire
from office by rotation at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.
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PROFILE ON DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Kwek Leng Beng, aged 67
Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Kwek Leng Beng has been the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company since 1989,

He is the Executive Chairman of the Hong Leong Group of Companies Singapore, and also Singapore-listed City
Developmenits Limited. He is atso Chairman and Managing Director of Singapore-listed Hong Leong Finance Limited. He
is the Chairman of London-listed Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc and Singapore-listed Hong Leong Asia Ltd.

Mr. Kwek’s achievements have also captured the attention of the academic institutions. He was conferred Honarary
Doctorate of Business Administration in Hospitality from Johnson & Wales University (Rhode Island, US), where students
have an opportunity to pursue career education in business, hospitality, culinary arts or technology; and Honorary
Doctorate from Oxford Brookes University (UK} whose citation traced how Mr. Kwek, who joined the family business in
the early 1960s, had gone on to establish an international reputation for his leadership of the Hong Leong Group, as well
as an active supporter of higher education in Singapore.

Mr. Kwek also serves as a Member of the INSEAD East Asia Council. France-based INSEAD is one of the world's leading
and largest graduate business schools which brings together pecple, cultures and ideas from around the world.

Mr. Kwek is a Member of the Action Community of Entrepreneurship (ACE), which invoives both the private and public
sectors to create a more entrepreneurial environment in Singapore for small and medium enterprises.

Mr. Kwek Leng Beng is the brother of Mr. Kwek Leng Joo, brother-in-law of Mr. Gan Khai Choon and cousin of Mr. Kwek
Leng Peck.

Mr. Vincent Yeo Wee Eng, aged 39
Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer

Mr. Vincent Yeo was appointed an Executive Director and Chief Operating Officer of the Company on 26 June 2000. He
was subsequently promoted to Chief Executive Officer in November 2000. In 2005, Mr. Yeo was appeinted a member of
the Remuneraticn Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company.

Mr. Yeo also assumed the role of Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer of M&C REIT Management Limited {as
the Manager of CDL Hospitality Real Estate Investment Trust} on 17 May 2006 and 19 July 2006 respectively.

Between 2001 to 2006, Mr. Yeo also served as the Chief Operating Officer and then the President of Millennium &
Copthorne International Limited. His key respensibilities included setting the overall direction of the Millennium &
Copthorne hotel chain incorporating operations, finance, sales and marketing, procurement and technical services in the
Asia-Pacific region.

M. Yeo was an Executive Director of Millennium & Copthorne Hotels ple (“M&C™}, the London-listed hotel arm of the
Hong Leong Group, overseeing global sales and marketing from February 1998 till March 2000,

Prior to his appointment to the M&C Board, Mr. Yeo was the Managing Director of Millennium & Copthorne Hotels

New Zealand Limited and CDL Investments New Zealand Limited and the Executive Director of Kingsgate International
Corporation Limited. In those capacities, he was in charge of the Australian and New Zealand operations and responsible
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PROFILE ON DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
Mr. Vincent Yeo Wee Eng (cont'd)

for developing and integrating the M&C Group's hotels into the largest hotel chain in New Zealand. Mr. Yeo “emains

a non-executive Director on the Boards of the M&C Group's two New Zealand-listed subsidiaries and Kingsgate
International Corporation Limited (which was dalisted in 2004) in New Zealand. Prior to his involvement in hotels, he was
with the international stock broking firm, Smith New Court Securities (now known as Merrill Lynch),

Mr. Yeo has a B.Se. in Business Administration from Boston University, United Staies of America.

Mr. Vincent Yeo Wee Eng is the nephew of Messrs. Kwek Leng Beng, Kwek Leng Joo and Kwek Leng Peck.

Mr. Kwek Leng Joo, aged 54
Executive Director

Mr. Kwek Leng Joo was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in 1989. He is currently the Managing Director
of Singapore-listed City Developments Limited. He is alsa a Director of Singapore-listed Hong Leong Finance Limited,
Kwek Holdings Pte Ltd, Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Lid. and London-listed Millennium & Copthorie Hotels
plc. Mr. Kwek holds a Diploma in Financial Management and has nearly 30 years of experience in property development
and investment.

Mr. Kwek is Vice Chairman of the Singapore Business Federation and Vice President of the ASEAN Chamber of
Commerce & Industry. The Immaediate Past President of the Singapore Chamber of Commerce & Industry, Mr. Kwek also
sits on board of many civic organizations including Chinese Language & Culture Funds Management Committee, National
Arts Councit, Council For Third Age Ltd and the Board of Trusiees of National Youth Achievement Award Council,

Mr. Kwek Leng Joo is the brother of Mr. Kwek Leng Beng, brotherin-aw of Mr. Gan Khai Choon, cousin of Mr. Kwek
Leng Peck.

Mr. Kwek Leng Peck, aged 51
Executive Director

Mr. Kwek Leng Peck has been an Executive Director of the Cormpany since 1989, He serves as Executive Diractor

on several Hong Leong Group companies, and has over 25 years of experience in trading, manufaciuring, property
investment and development, hotel operations, corporate finance and management. He also sits on the Boards of
several public companies, including Singapore-listed City Developments Limited, Singapore-listed Hong Leong Asia Ltd.,
Singapcere-listed Hong Leong Finance Limited, Hong Leong Holdings Limited, New York-disted China Yuchai International
Limited, London-listed Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc and Malaysia-listed Tasek Corporation Berhad. Mr. Kwek holds
a Diplorma in Accountancy.

Mi. Kwek Leng Peck is the cousin of Mr. Kwek Leng Beng and Mr. Kwek Leng Joo.
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Mr. Gan Khai Choon, aged 61
Executive Director

Mr. Gan Khai Choon was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in 1983 and is also Managing Director of
Hong Leong International (Hong Kang) Limited. He is also an Independent non-executive Director of Hong Kong-listed
Safety Godown Company Limited and Chairman of its Audit Committee. Mr. Gan was appointed Chairman of Singapore-
listed HLG Enterprise Limited in September 2007. He has more than 33 years of experience in banking, real estate
investment and development. He has been responsible for oversesing the development of the Grand Hyatt Taipei and
other international projects for the Hong Leong Group of companies. Mr. Gan has a Bachelor of Arts degree (Honours} in
Economics from the University of Malaya.

Mr. Gan Khai Choon is the brother-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Beng and Mr. Kwek Leng Joo.

Mr. Lawrence Yip Wai Lam, aged 52
Executive Director

Mr. Lawrence Yip was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in December 1998. He was formerly the General
Manager (Finance & Administration} of the Company. He has over 10 years of experience in the Treasury Division of
several banks. Prior to joining the Group in April 1880, Mr. Yip held the position of Regional Treasurer with a bank in
Singapore.

Mr. Wong Hong Ren, aged 56
Non-Executive Director

Mr. Wong Hong Ren was appeinted a Director of the Company in October 1934, Mr. Wong is the Chairman and President
of Philippines-listed Grand Plaza Hotel Corporation, Chairman of M&C REIT Management Limited (as Manager of CDL
Hospitality Real Estate Investment Trust), New Zeatand-listed Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited and
New Zeatand-isted CDL Investments New Zeaiand Limited. He is also an Executive Director of London-listed Millennium
& Copthorne Hotels plc and a Director of Singapore-listed Thakral Corporation Ltd and New York-listed China Yuchai
International Limited.

Mr. Wong joined Hong Leong Management Services Pte. Ltd. ("HLMS"), a2 whotly-owned subsidiary of Hong Leong
Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. in 1988 as Group Investment Manager and was re-designated as Executive Vice President
(Group Investment) of HLMS in 2006. He is widely experienced in hospitality and industrial businesses overseas,
investment analysis, international capital market and mergers and acquisitions transactions as well as post-acquisition
management re-organisation matters. Prior to 1988, he was a director and general manager {Investment and Property) of
Haw Par Brothers International Limited and a Director of Investment with Royal Trust Asset Management Pte. Ltd. and
First Capital Corporation Ltd.

Mr. Wong holds a Masters in Business Administration from Bradford University, United Kingdom.
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PROFILE ON DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
Hon. Chan Bernard Charnwut, aged 43
Non-executive Director

Hon. Chan Bernard Charnwut has been a Director of the Company since 1989 and was appointed a member of the

Audit Committee on 18 January 2000. Previously an independant non-executive director of the Company, he '~as re-
designated as a non-executive director of the Company with eifect from 30 September 2004, In 2005, he was appointed
a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Hon. Chan, graduated from Pomena College in California,
U.5.A., i1s a member of both the Executive Council and Legislative Council of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. He is currently the President of Asia Insurance Co Ltd. and the Deputy Chairman of the Lingnan University. He
is also @ member of the Insurance Advisory Committee, Greater Pearl River Delta Business Counci! and the Antiquities
Advisory Board. |n addition, he serves as the Advisor of Bangkok Bank Ltd., Horg Kong Branch, the Chairman of the
Hong Kong-Thailand Business Council and the Chairperson of The Hong Kong Council of Social Service.

Han. Chan is also an Executive Director and the President of Asia Financial Holdings Limited and an independent non-
executive Director of Yau Lee Holdings Limited, Chen Hsong Holdings Limited, Kingboard Laminates Holdings Lid.,
China Resources Enterprise Ltd. and a non-executive Director of New Heritage Holdings Limited, ali of which are public
companies listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

* Dr. Lo Ka Shui, aged 61
Director

Dr. Lo Ka Shui was appaointed to the Board of the Company in 1989. [n 2005, he was appointed Chatrman of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He graduated with B.Sc. from McGill University and M.D, from Cornell
University, certified in Cardiclogy. He has more than 28 years experience in property and hotel development, invastment
and management, both in Hong Kong and overseas. Dr. Lo is the Chairman and Managing Director of Great Eagle
Holdings Limited, the non-executive Chairman of Eagle Asset Management (CP) Limited (Manager of publicly listed
Champion Real Estate Investment Trust). He is a non-executive Director of The Hongkong and Shanghsi Banking
Corporation Limited, Shanghai Industrial Holdings Limited, Phoenix: Satellite Television Holdings Limited, China Mobile
Limited, Melco International Development Limited and Windsor Properties Holdings Limited. He is also a Vice President
of The Real Estate Developers Agsociation of Hong Kong, a Trustee of the Hong Kong Centre for Economic Research and
a Board Member of the Airport Authority.

* Mr. Lee Jackson @ Li Chik Sin, aged 75
Director

Mr. Lee Jackson was appointed a non-executive Director and Chairrnan of the Audit Committee of the Company in
December 1898. In 2005, he was appointed a member of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. He also sits on the Board of Metro Holdings Limited, Hong Fok Corporation Limited and Hong Leong
Finance Limited, all of which are Singapore-listed public companies. He was formerly a partner of an intermnational firm of
Chartered Accountants and is a member of The Australian Institute of Chartered Accountanis.
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* Mr. Teoh Teik Kes, aged 48
Director

Mr. Teoh Teik Kee was appointed an independent non-executive Director and a member of the Audit Committee of the
Company on 30 September 2004. |n 2005, he was appoeinted Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member
of the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mr. Teoh is an executive director of ecoWise Heldings Limited and an
independent director of Luzhou Bio-Chem Technology Limited. Both are Singapore-listed public companigs.

M. Tech is a Chartered Accountant by training, and worked from 1986 to 1990 with KPMG Peat Marwick Mclintock in
London and with PricewaterhouseCoopers in Singapore. Mr. Teoh has extensive experience in investment banking and
corporate financial advisory services when he was with the DBS Bank Group.

Mr. Teoh graduated from Aston University, England with a B.Sc. (Hons) in Managerial and Administrative Studies. Heisa
member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales.

* Independent non-executive director

The non-executive Directors are subject to the same terms of appointment as the other directors of the Company. Fees payable 1o non-
executive Directors are approved by the Board at the end of each financial year.

Senior Management

Mr. Man Mang Wo, Derek, aged 52
Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Man Mang Wo, Derek joined the Group in 1996 and was appointed Chief Financial Officer of the Company with
effect from 1 April 2004. Mr. Man is a member of the Certified General Accountants Association of Canada, a fellow
member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales. He also holds a Bachelor
of Business Administration honours degree fram a UK university and a Master of Professional Accounting degree from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has over 25 years of experience in the accounting and finance field.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES

(a)  As at 31 December 2007, the interests of the Directors of the Company in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company or any of its associated corporations [within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the "SFO")} as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“The Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Companies (the “Model Code”). were as follows:

The Company
Number of
Nature of Ordinary Shares
Name of Director Interest of HK$1.00 each
Kwek Leng Beng personal 3,286,980
Vincent Yeo Wee Eng personal 718,000
Kwek Leng Joo personal 1,436,000
Kwek Leng Peck personal 2,082,200
Gan Khai Choon personal 1,041,100
Lawrence Yip Wai Lam personal 520,550
Wong Hong Ren persanal 1,613,112
Hon. Chan Bernard Charnwut personal k3,850
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (CONT'D)
{al lcont'd)

City Developments Limited

Nature of Number of
Name of Director Interest Ordinary Shares
Kwek Leng Beng personal 397,226
Kwek Leng Joo personal 65,461
Kwek Leng Peck personal 43,758
Gan Khai Choon personal 100,000

family 25,000

Wong Hong Ren Tamily 4,950

Nature of Number of
Name of Director Interest Preference Shares
Kwek Leng Beng personal 144,445
Kwek Leng Joo personal 100,000
Gan Khai Choon personal 49,925

family 25,738

Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd.

Nature of Number of
Name of Director Interest Ordinary Shares
Kwek Leng Beng personal 2,320
Kwek Leng Joo personal 1,290
Kwek Leng Peck personaf 304
Gan Khai Choon family 247
Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limited

Nature of Number of
Name of Director Interest Ordinary Shares
Kwek Leng Beng personal 3,000,000
Wang Hong Ren persaonal 2,000,000
Vincent Yeo Wee Eng personal 500,000

Note:  Millennium & Copthorne Hotels New Zealand Limitad is an indirect subsidiary of Millennium & Copthorne Hotzls plc, a
subsidiary of City Developments Limited. City Developrnents Limited is the holding company of the Company. The Directors
of the Company consider Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Lid. to be the Company’s ultimate holding conpany.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES (CONT'D)

(b)

e

Pursuant to the Millenniur & Copthorne Hotels Executive Share Option Scheme (the “1996 Scheme”) operated
by Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc, certain Directors have outstanding options thereunder ("M&C Options”} to
subseribe for M&C shares for cash as follows:

Number of Exercise
Date MB&C Options Price per Exercise
Name of Director Part* Granted  Outstanding M&C Share Pariod
Vincent Yeo Wee Eng A 05/03/1998 6,509 £4.6087  05/03/2001 to
04/03/2008
Wong Hong Ren B 14/03/2001 69,364 £4,3250  14/03/2004 to
13/03/2008
B 15/03/2002 83,720 £3.2250  15/03/2005 to
14/03/2009

Pursuant to the Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc 2003 Executive Share Option Scheme {the "2003 Scheme”},
approved by shareholders of Millennium & Copthorne Hotels plc on 21 May 2002, certain Directors have
outstanding cptions thereunder {"M&C Options”) to subscribe for M&C shares for cash as follows:

Number of Exercise
Date M&C Options Price per Exercise
Name of Director Part* Granted Outstanding M&C Share Period
Vincent Yeo Wee Eng I 24/03/2005 10,581 £3.9842  24/03/2008 to
23/03/2015
Wong Hong Ren It 10/03/2003 32,248 £1.93560  10/03/2007 to
09/03/2013
! 10/03/2003 91,783 £1.9350  10/03/2008 to
09/03/2013
I 16/03/2004 44,999 £2.9167  16/03/2007 to0
15/03/2014
Il 24/03/2005 75,297 £3.9842 24/03/2008 to
23/03/2015

*Note: The 1996 Scheme has two parts. Part A is designed for the approval by the UK Inland Revenue, of which approval was
obtained under Schedule 9 of the Income and Corporation Taxes Act 1988 on 12 April 1998. Part B is an unapproved
executive share option scheme designed for UK and non-UK executives. As with the 1996 Scheme, the 2003 Scheme
provides for the grant of both approved and unapproved options.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

31 December 2007

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES (CONT'D)
{d) Pursuant to Millennium & Coptherne Hotels Long Term incentive Plan {the “LTIP") approved by shareholders of

Millennium & Copthorne Hotels pic on 4 May 20086, certain Directors were awarded Performance Shae Awards of
ordinary shares of 30p each as follows:

Number of

Poarformance
Name of Director Date Awarded Shares  Vesting Date
Wong Hong Ren 01/09/2006 67,834 01/09/2009
27/03/2007 44,736 27/03/2010
Lawrence Yip Wai Lam 01/09/2006 9,622 01/09/2009
27/03/2007 5,698 27/03/2010

MNote:  Under the terms of the LTIP M&C is permitted to make both Perforrmance Share Awards and Deferred Shars Bonus
Awards to an employee (including an executive director) of M&C or its subsidiaries.

&) Save as disclosed herein, as at 31 December 2007, nore of the Directors and the chief executive of the Company
or their associates were interested or had any short position in any shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS
As at 31 December 2007, the following persons were interested in 5% or more of the issued share capitat of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the SFO:

Percentage
Number of Holding in the

Shares Held Notes Company |

Name of Shareholder ‘"

eMpire Investments Limited 190,623,819 49.73% .|

City Developments Limited 200,854,743 )] 52.43% ’
Hong Leong Holdings Limited 21,356,085 5.57%
Haong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. 230,866,817 {2) 60.26%
Kwek Holdings Pte Ltd 230,866,817 (3) 60.26%
Davos Investment Holdings Private Limited 230,866,817 3 60.26%
Kwek Leng Kee 230,866,817 (4) 60.26%
Arnhold and S Bleichroeder Advisors, LLC 38,022,000 9.92%
Farallon Capital Management, L.L.C. 35,232,850 (8 9.20%
Farallon Capital Offshore Investars, Inc. 35,232,850 {6) 9.20%
Aberdeen Asset Management Plc and its 23,052,000 (7 6.02%

Assocciates {together “The AAM Group”} on
behalf of accounts managed by The AAM Group
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS {(CONT'D)

Notes:

1 Of the 200,854,743 shares beneficially owned by wholly-owned subsidiaries of City Developments Limited {"CDL")
representing approximately 52.43% of the issued share capital of the Company, 190,523,819 shares are held by
eMpire Investments Limited.

2  The intarests of COL and Hong Leong Holdings Limited in 200,854,743 shares and 21,356,085 shares respectively,
are included in the aggregate number of shares disclosed,

3  The deemed interest of Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. in 230,866,817 shares, representing approximately
60.26% of the issued share capital of the Company, is included in the aggregate number of shares disclosed.

4 Mr. Kwek Leng Kee is deemed to have an interest in the 230,866,817 shares in which Davos Investment Holdings
Private Limited ("Davos”} is deemed to have an interest in, by virtue of his entitlement to exercise or control the
exercise of one-third or more of the voting power at general meetings of Davos.

5 Farallon Capital Management, LLC is interested in these shares in its capacity as the investment rmanager.
6 Farafion Capital Offshore Investors, Inc is interested in these shares in its capacity as the beneficial owner.

7 Aberdeen Asset Management Plc is interested in these shares in its capacity as the investrent manager and
includes shares in which wholly owned controlled corporations of Aberdeen Asset Management Plc are interested.

Save as stated above, no person was interested in or had a short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2007.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance 1o which the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or holding companies
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Save as disclosed herein, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or
holding companies a party to any arrangaments to enable any Director of the Company to acquire benefits by means of
acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST

Save as disclosed herein, apart from transactions carried out in the normal course of business, there were no contracts
of significance between the Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries or
any contracts of any significance for the provision of services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

31 December 2007

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS
Hotel Consultancy Services

Hotel Consultancy Services are the property management corsultancy services provided by the Group o M&Z Hotel
Interasts Inc. ("M&CHI™). M&CHI is an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Millennium & Copthorne Hotels ple. Details of
the transactions were set out in the press announcement dated 10 January 2003 as revised by the press announcement
dated 11 June 2004. The cap amount for Hotel Consuttancy Services is HK$9.5 million for each financial year.

The total revenue generated from the provision of Hotel Consultancy Services for the year ended 31 December 2007
amounted to HK$2.9 million (2006: HK$2.7 million).

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Hotel Consultancy Services Transactions for the year under
review and confirmed that the said transactions were conducted:

{i) in the ordinary and usual course of its business;

(il onnormal commercial terms or, if thera are not sufficient comparable transactions 1o judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favourable to the Company than terms available from independent third parties; and

(i) in accordance with the operating agreement.
The auditors have indicated in writing that based on the agreed-upon procedures:
it  The transactions have been approved by the Directors;

it  Management has confirmed that they consider the transactions have been entered inio in accordance with the
terms of the Operating Agreement as amended by the Supplemental Agreement;

{iil  Where there are signed agreements or written acknowledgements, the auditors have ohiained, on a sarnple basis,
signed agreementsfwritten acknowtedgements of the service and related fee charges; and

{iv) The total revenue received by the Group in relation to the Hotel Consultancy Services transactions for the relevant
financial year has not exceeded HK$9.5 million.

As the above procedures do not constitute either an audit or a review made in accerdance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, the auditors did not express any assurance on
the connected transactions for the yvear ended 31 December 2007.

Other Related Party Transactions

Other related party transactions are set out in note 25 to the financial statements, which either fall under the cefinition of
“Continuing Connected Transactions” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules and are exempted under de minimis rules or
does not fall into the definition of “connected transaction” or “zontinuing connected transaction”.

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF DIRECTORS
None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or its subsidiaries.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS
Under present Cayman Isiands laws and the Articles of Association of the Cormpany, no pre-emptive rights are imposed
which would oblige the Company to oifer new shares on a pro-rata basis 10 existing shareholders.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE COMPANY'S LISTED SECURITIES
Neither the Cornpany nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities
during the year.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information that is publicly avaitable to the Company and within the knowledge of its directors, the directors
confirm that the Company has maintained the amount of public float as required under the Listing Rules during the year.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive directers an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive directors to be
independent.

AUDITORS
KPMG retire and, being eligible. offer themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

On behalf of the Board
KWEK LENG BENG

Chairman

25 February 2008
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ RE!PORT TO THE

SHAREHOLDERS OF CITY E-SOLUTIONS LIMITED

{Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of City e-Solutions Limited {the “Company”) set out on pages
37 to 80 which comprise the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 31 December 2007, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated staterment of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow staternant for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directers of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This responsibility includes designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of financial staterments that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies;
and meking accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on cur audit. This report is made sclely to
you, as a body, in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume respoensibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of the report,

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing. Those standards raquire that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perfoerm the audit 10 cbtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosuras in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. [n making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the di‘ectors, as
well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion,

OPINION

In our epinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Cornpany and ‘
of the Group as at 31 December 2007 and of the Group's profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance ;
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. i

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
16 Raffles Quay #22-00
Hong Leong Building
Singapore 048581

25 February 2008
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

for the yvear ended 31 December 2007

The Group
Note 2007 2006
HKS$'000 HK$'000
Turnover 3 105,254 79,010
Cost of sales {22,189) {8.609)
Gross profit 83,065 70,401
Other net {losseslfincome 4 {5,265) 46,717
Administrative expenses {56,627) 42,537}
Profit from operations 21,173 74,581
Share of losses of associate 16 (2,478) -
Profit before taxation 5 18,695 74,581
Income tax 6 (2,488) 20,871 |
|
Profit for the year 16,207 95,452 !
Attributable to: |
Equity sharehalders of the Company g 14,091 93,152
Minority interests 2,116 5,300
Profit for the year 16,207 95,452
|
Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year:
- Final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date
HK3 cents per share (2008: HK6 cents per share) 10 11.494 22,988
Earnings per share " HK cents HK cents
Basic 3.68 23.53

The notes on pages 42 to 80 farm part of these financial statements.

City e-Solutions Limited and its Subsidiaries 37



BALANCE SHEETS

as at 31 December 2007

The Group The Company
Note 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$'000
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment 13 71,626 6,587 4,349 5,457
Intangibte assets 14 39,032 302 - -
Interests in subsidiaries 15 - - 259,600 189,441
Interest in associate 16 10,045 - - -
Deferred tax assets 18 17,906 21,083 - -
Total non-current assets 74,609 27,972 263,949 194,898
Current assets
Properties held for resale 17,473 - - -
Trading securities 19 114,226 181,641 106,623 176,122
Trade and other receivables 20 28,254 25,759 34,770 12,449
Current tax recoverable B¢ 328 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 21 513,833 487,249 283,318 284,014
674,114 694,649 424,711 482,585
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 (50,509) (19,512) {7,321) {6,957}
Provisian for taxation Bc - (759) - {1,025)
{50,509) (20,271) {7.321) {7.982)
Net current assets 623,605 674,378 417,390 474,603
Total assets less current liabilities 698,214 702,350 681,339 669,501
NET ASSETS 698,214 702,350 681,339 663,501
CAPITAL AND RESERVES 23
Share capital 383,126 383,126 383,126 383,126
Reserves 279,428 285,794 298,213 286,375
Total equity attributable to eguity
shareholders of the Company 662,554 668,920 681,339 669,501
Minority interests 35,660 33,430 - -
TOTAL EQUITY 698,214 702,350 681,339 669,501

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 25 February 2008.
Kwek Leng Beng Gan Khai Choon
Chairman Director

The notes on pages 42 to 80 form part of thase financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

for the year ended 31 December 2007

The Group
Note 2007 2006
HKS'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
Total equity at 1 January 702,350 617,822

Net income recognised directly

in equity:
- Exchange differences on

translation of financial statements

of overseas subsidiaries 23 2,422 570
- Exchange differences on

monetary items farming part

of net investment in a

foreign operation 23 223 -
Net income for the year recognised -

directly in equity 2,645 570
Net profit for the year 16,207 95,452

Total recognised income and expense
for the year 18,852 96,022

Attributable to:

Equity shareholders of the Company 16,622 90,633
Minority interests 2,230 5,389
18,852 96,022

Dividends declared or approved during
the year {22,988) {11,494}

Total equity at 31 December 698,214 702,350

Tha notes on pages 42 to B0 form part of these financial statements,
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW ‘-STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2007 l

The Group
Note 2007 2008
HK$'000 HKS$'000
Operating activities
Profit before taxation 18,695 74,581
Adjustments for:
Interest income 3 {23,159) {23,763}
Dividend income 3 {6.264) {8,295}
Depreciation 5 2,208 1,382
Net profit on sale of plant and equipment 4 - (18)
Amortisation of intangible assets 5 62 66
Impairment losses on trade receivables 5 211 839
Share of losses of associate 16 2,478 -
Net realised and unrealised losses/{gains) on trading securities 4 16,086 {27,882)
Net loss on forward foreign exchange contracts 4 404 1,006
Net foreign exchange gains {3.261} {25,5286)
(11,235) {82,189)
Operating profit/({loss} before changes in working capital 7,460 (7,608)
Changes in working capital
Trade and other receivables 1,066 {2,788)
Trade and other payables 16,944 {1,023}
Cash generated from/{used in) operations 25,470 (11,419)
Interest received 24,321 22,899
Dividend received 7.240 3,600
Dividends paid to shareholders {22,988} 111,494)
Tax paid - overseas tax {288) {444)
Net cash generated from operating activities 33,755 3,142

The notes on pages 42 to 80 form part of these financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

for the year ended 31 December 2007

The Group
Note 2007 2006
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
{nvesting activities
Payment for purchase of plant and equipment (1,694) (3,983}
Proceeds from sale of plant and equipment - 820
Payment for purchase of properties held for resale (16,663) -
Proceeds from sale of trading securities 159,416 57,973
Payment for purchase of trading securities (99,914} {79,271} I
Investment in associate (12,491} - :
Investment in jointly controlled entity, net of cash acquired 17 {38,550} -
Purchase of intangible assets - (24)
Net cash used in investing activities (9,896) {24,485)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 23,859 (21,343)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 21 487,249 497,335
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes 2,125 11,257
Cash and cash aquivalents at 31 December 21 513,833 487,249

Significant non-cash transaction
During the financial vear, the Group received scrip dividends of HK$6,223,000 {2006: HK$1,095,000) from one of its

investee companies.

The notes on pages 42 to 80 form part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL S'l:'ATEMENTS

31 December 2007

These notes form an integral part of the financial statements,

1. PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES
The principal activities of the Company comprise those of investment holding and the provision of consultancy services.

The principal activities and other particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in note 15 to the financis! statements.

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
{a} Statement of Compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Finanzial
Reporting Standards (HKFRSs), which collective term includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards {HKASs) and Interpretations issued by the Hong Keng
Institute of Certified Public Accountants {HKICPA), accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong

and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Keng Limited. A summary of the significant accounting policies adopted by the Group is
set out below,

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are effective or availabla for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group and the Company. The accounting policies of the Group after the adoption
of these new developments 10 the extent that they are relevant to the Group have been summarised below. The
adoption of these accounting standards did not have a significant effect on the Group's financial statements.

{b) Basis of Preparation of the Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2007 comprise the Company, its
subsidiaries and its interest in a jointly controlled entity (together referred to as the “Group”) and the Group's
interest in an associate.

The measurement basis used in the preparation of the financial statements is the historical cost basis except
that the following assets and liabilities are stated at their fair value as explained in the accounting paiicies set
out below:

- financial instruments classified as trading securities (see note 2(f)): and
- derivative financial instruments (see note 2(g}).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factors that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances, the results
of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis, Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future pericds if the revision affects both current and future periods,

Judgments made by management in the application of HKFRSs that have significant effect on the financial
statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the next year are discussed in note 30.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D}

{c)

fd}

Subsidiaries and Minority interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group. Control exists when the Group has the power to govern the
financial and operating pelicies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from their activities. In assessing control,
potential voting rights that presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the consolidated financial statements from the date

that control commences until the date that control ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated
financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Minority interests represent the portion of the net assets of subsidiaries attributable to equity interests that
are not owned by the Company, whether directly or indirectly through subsidiaries, and in respect of which the
Group has not agreed any additional terms with the holders of those interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation in respect of those interests that meets the definition of a financial
liability. Minority interests are presented in the consolidated balance sheet and statement of changes in equity
within equity, separately from equity attributable to the equity shareholders of the Company. Minority interests
in the results of the Group are presented on the face of the consolidated income statement as an allocation of
the total profit or loss for the year between mincrity interests and the equity shareholders of the Company.

Where losses applicable to the minerity exceed the minority’s interest in the equity of a subsidiary, the excess,
and any further losses attributable to the minority, are charged against the Group's interest except 1o the extent
that the minority has a binding obligation to, and is able to, make additional invastment to cover the losses. If
the subsidiary subsequently reports profits, the Group's interest is allocated all such profits until the minority’s
share of losses previously absorbed by the Group has been recovered.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2{k)).
Associate

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant influence, but not control or joint
control, over its management, including participation in the financial and operating policy decisions.

An investrment in an associate is accounted for in the consolidated {inancial statements under the equity
method and is initially recorded at cost and adjusted thereafter for the post acquisition change in the Group's
share of the associate’s net assets. The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share of the
post-acquisition, post-tax results of the associate for the year.

When the Group's share of losses exceeds its interest in the associate, the Group's interest is reduced to

nik and recognition of further losses is discontinued except to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or

constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the associate. For this purpose, the Group's interest
in the associate is the carrying amount of the investment under the equity method together with the Group’s
long-term interests that in substance form part of the Group's net investrment in the associate.

Unrealised profits and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its associate is efiminated
to the extent of the Group's interest in the associate, except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred, in which case they are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

In the Company’s balance sheet, its investment in an associate is stated at cost less impairment losses (see note 2(k}.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
[

31 December 2007

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
{e} Jointly Controlied Entity

A jointly controlled entity is an entity which operates under a contractual arrangement between the Group
and other partigs, where the contractual arrangement established that the Group or one or more of the other
parties share joint contro! over the economic activity of the entity.

The Group recognises its interest in jointly controlled entity using proportionate consolidation. The Group
combines its share of each of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the jointly controlled entity with

similar items on a line by line basis. Consistent accounting policies are applied for like transactions anc events
in similar circumstances.

Aninvestment in a jointly controlled entity is proporticnately consolidated into the consolidated financial
statements from the date that joint control commences. Intra-group balances and transactions and any
unrealised profits arising from intra-group transactions are eliminated to the extent of the Group's interest in
the jointly controlled entity in preparing the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses resulting

from intra-group transactions are eliminated in the sarme way as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment until the date on which the Group ceases to have joint control over the

jointly controlled entity.

Other Investments in Debt and Equity Securities

The Group’s and the Company’s policies for investments in debt and equity securities, other than investments
in subsidiaries, associate and jeintly controlled entity are as follows:

Investments in debt and eguity securities are initially stated at cost, which is their transaction price unless
fair value can be more reliably estimated using valuation techniques whose variables include only daa from
observable markets. Cost includes attributable transaction costs, except where indicated otherwise aelow.

Investments in debt and equity securities held for trading are classified as current assets. Any attributable
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss as incurred. At each balance sheet date the fair valLe is
remeasured, with any resultant gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss does not include any dividends or interest earned on these investments as these are
recognised in accordance with the policies set out in note 2{s)(iv} and {v).

Investments are recognised/derecognised on the date the Group commits t¢ purchase/sell the investments or
they expire.

Derivative Financial Instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially at fair value. At each balance sheet date the fair value
is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair value is charged immediately to profit or loss.

{h) Other Plant and Equipment

Plant and equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (see note 2(k}).

Gains or losses arising from the retirement or disposal of an item of plant and equipment are deterrnined as

the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item and are reccgnised in
the profit or loss on the date of retirement or disposal.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
fh) Other Plant and Equipment (cont'd)

fi)

i

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost of items of plant and equipment, less their estimated residual
value, if any, using the straight-ine method over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Piant, machinery and equipment [comprising principally
furniture and fixtures and office equipment) - 6%1t033.33%

Motor vehicles - 20%
Both the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if any, are reviewed annually.
intangible Assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the Group are stated in the balance sheet at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life is finite) and impairment losses {(see note 2{k)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite useful lives is charged 1o the profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the assets’ estimated useful lives. Trademarks with finite lives are amortised over their estimated useful
lives of 15 years.

Both the period and method of amortisation are reviewed annually,

Trademarks are not amortised while their useiul lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any conclusion that

the useful life is indefinite is reviewed annually to determine whether events and circumstances continue

to suppert the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset. If they do not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is accounted for prospectively from the date of change and in accordance
with the policy for amontisation of intangible assets with finite lives as set out above.

Leased Assets

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or a series of transactions, is or contains a lease if the Group
determines that the arrangement conveys a right to use a specific asset or assets for an agreed period of time
in return for a payment or a series of payments. Such a determination is made based on an evaluation of the
substance of the arrangement and is regardless of whether the arrangement takes the legal form of a lease.

it Classification of assets leased {0 the Group

Assets that are held by Group under leases which transfer to the Group substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership are classified as being held under finance leases. Leases which do not transfer
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership to the Group are classified as operating leases.

(il Operating lease charges

Where the Group has the use of assets held under operating leases, payments made under the leases
are charged to profit or loss in equal instalments over the accounting periods covered by the lease tarm,
except where an alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits o be derived from
the leased asset. Lease incentives received are recognised in profit or loss as an integral part of the
aggregate net lease payments made, Contingent rentals are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
fk} Impairment of Assets

{iy  Impairment of receivables

Current and non-current receivables that are stated at cost or amortised cost are reviewed at each
balance sheet date to determine whether there is objective evidence of impairment. If any such
evidence exists, the impairment lgss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying
amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows, discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition of these assets),
where the effect of discounting is material. This assessment is made collectively where financial assets
carried at amortised cost share similar risk characteristics, such as similar past due status, and have not
been individually assessed as impaired. Future cash flows for financial assets which are asseszed for
impairment collectively are based on historical css experience for assets with credit risk characteristics
similar to the collective group.

If in a subseguent pericd the amount of an impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be linked
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised, the impairment loss is
reversed through profit or loss. A reversal of an impairment loss shall not result in the asset’s carrying
amount exceeding that which would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised in
prior years.

(il Impairment of other assets

Internal and external sources of information are reviewed at each balance sheet date to identify
indications that the following assets may be impaired, an impairment loss previously recognised no
longer exists or may have decreased:

- plant and equipment;

- intangible assets;

- investments in subsidiaries, associate and jointly-controlled entity; and

- other investments in securities.

If any such indication exists, the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. In addition, for intar gible
assets that have indefinite useful lives, the recoverable amount is estimated annually whether or not
there is any indication of impairment.

- Calculation of recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of an asset is the greater of its net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present valu: using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of time value of money anc the
risks specific to the asset. Where an asset does not generate cash inflows largely indepencent of
those from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined for the smallest group of assets that
generaies cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit),
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D)

k)

{7

m}

Impairment of Assets (cont’d)
(i)  impairment of other assets (cont'd)
- Recognition of impairment losses

An impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss whenever the cafrying amount of an asset, or

the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses
recognised in respeci of cash-generating units are allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of
any goodwill allocated 1o the cash-generating unit {or group of units) and then, to reduce the carrying
amount of the others assets in the unit {or group of units} on a pro-rata basis, except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its individual fair value less costs to sell, or value in use, if
determinable.

- Reversal of impairment losses

In respect of assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverabie amount.

A reversal of an impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying amount that would have heen
determined had no impairment loss been recognised in prior years. Reversals of impairment losses
are credited to profit or loss in the year in which the reversals are recognised.

(i) Interim financial reporting and impairment

Under the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited, the
Group is required to prepare an interim finangial report in compliance with HKAS 34, interim financial
reporting, in respect of the first six months of the financial year. At the end of the interim period, the
Group applies the same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal criteria as it would at the end of
the financial year (see notes 2{k)i} and (i)},

Properties held for resale

Properties held for resale are those properties which are held with the intention of sale in the ordinary course
of business. They are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price less costs to be incurred for seiling the property.

The cost of properties held for resale comprises acquisition costs and other related expenditure.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially recognised at fair value and thereafter stated at amortised cost less
allowance for impairment of doubtful debts {see note 2{k)), except where the receivables are interest-free
loans made to related parties without any fixed repayment terms or the efiect of discounting would be

immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are stated at cost less allowance for impairment of doubtful debts
(see note 2(k)).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D)
{n) Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently stated at amortised cost
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand, demand deposits with banks and other
financial institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in valug, having been within three months of

maturity at acquisition.

Employee Benefits

(il Short-term employee benefiis and contributions to defined contribution retirement plans

Salaries, annual bonuses, paid annual feave, contributions to defined contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits are accrued in the year in which the associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or settlement is deferred and the effect would be material, these

amounts are stated at their present values.

Termination benefits
Termination benefits are recognised when, and only when, the Group demonstrably commits itself to
terminate employmaent or to provide benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by having a detailed
formal plan which is without realistic possibility of withdrawal.
Liability for Unpaid Insurance Claims
Liability for unpaid insurance claims are based on claims filed and estimates for claims incurred but not regorted.
{r! Income Tax

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and movements in deferred ax assets and liabilities. Current

tax and movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent

that they relate to items recognised directly in equity, in which case they are recognised in equity.

Current tax is the expected tax payable an the taxable incomne for the year, using tax rates enacted or
substantively enacted at the halance sheet date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from deductible and taxable temporary differences respectively, being
the differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and
their tax bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

{r}

Income Tax (cont'd)

Apart from certain limited exceptions, all deferred tax liabitities, and all deferred tax assets 1o the extent that it
is probable that future 1axable profits will be available against which the asset can be utilised, are recognised.
Future taxable profits that may support the recognition of deferred tax assets arising from deductible
temporary differences include those that will arise from the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected
to reverse either in the same period as the expected reversal of the deductible temporary difference orin
periods into which a tax loss arising from the deferred tax asset can be carried back or forward. The same
criteria are adopted when determining whather existing taxable temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred 1ax assets arising from unused tax losses and credits, that is, those differences are taken into
account if they relate to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity, and are expected 10 reverse
in a period, or periods, in which the tax loss or credit can be utilised.

The limited exceptions to recognition of deferred tax assets and liabilities are those temporary difierences
arising from goodwill not deductible for tax purposes, the initial recognition of assets or liabilities that affect
neither accounting nor taxable profit {provided they are not part of a business combination}, and temporary
differences relating to investments in subsidiaries to the extent that, in the case of taxable differences,

the Group controls the timing of the reversal and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future, or in the case of deductible differences, unless it is probable that they will reverse in the
future.

The amount of deferred tax recognised is measured based on the expected manner of realisation or
settlement of the carrying amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax rates enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset is reviewed at each halance sheet date and is reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow the related tax benefit
to be utilised, Any such reduction is reversed to the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the distribution of dividends are recognised when the liability to pay
the related dividends is recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax balances, and movements therein, are presented separately from each
other and are not offset. Current tax assets are offset against current tax liabilities, and deferred tax assets
against deferred tax liabilities if, the Company or the Group has the legally enforceable right to set off current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and the following additional conditions are met:

- in the case of current tax assets and liabilities, the Company or the Group intends either to settle on a net
basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and liabilities, if they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either:

- the same taxahle entity; or
- different taxable entities, which, in each future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax

liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or recovered, intend to realise the current tax assets and
settle the current tax liabilities on a net basis or realise and settle simultaneously.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
fs} Revenue Recognition

Provided it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue and costs, if
appficable, can be measured reliably, revenue is recognised in the profit or loss as follows:

(i)

{iiy

{iiiy

(iv)

v

(v}

Hotel management revenua

Revenue arising from hotel management services, reservation distribution and payroll services is
recognised when the relevant services are delivered.

Insurance and risk management revenue

Revenue arising from insurance and risk management services, where the Group acts as an agent a.d
does not assume underwriting risk, is recognised based on the net amount retained or the amount Lilled
to the customer less the amount paid to suppliers.

For risk management services where the Company acts as an agent and does not assume any
underwriting risk, revenue is recorded as the net amount earned as fees rather than the gross amount of
insurance premiums and related costs.

Course Fees

Tuition fees, course fees and related instruction ¢osts are recognised over the period of instruction on a
straight-line basis.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective interest method.

Dividends

Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the shareholder's right to receive
payment is established. Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the share prics of
the investment goes ex-dividend.

Sale of properties

Revenue arising from sale of properties held for sale is recognised upon the signing of the sale and
purchase agreament or the issue of an occupation permit by the relevant government authorities,

whichever is the later. Deposits and instalments received on properties sald prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in the balance sheet under forward sales deposits and instalments received.

{t}  Translation of Foreign Currencies

(i)

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions during the year are translated at the foreign exchange rates ruling on tre
transaction dates. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in
the profit or loss.
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2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

)

{u}

Transiation of Foreign Currencies {cont’d}

{ii}

(iii)

Foreign operations

The results of foreign operations are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange rates
approximating the foreign exchange rates ruling at the dates of the transactions. Balance sheet iterns,
including goodwill arising on consalidation of foreign operations acquired on or after 1 January 2005, are
translated into Hong Kong dollars at the foreign exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised directly in a separate component of equity. Goodwil!
arising on consolidation of a foreign operation acquired before 1 January 2005 is translated at the foreign
exchange rate that applied at the date of acquisition of the foreign operation.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognised in
equity which relate to that foreign operation is included in the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Net investment in a foreign operation

Exchange differences arising from monetary items that in substance form part of the Company’s net
investment in a foreign operation are recognised in the Company’s income statement. Such exchange
differences are reclassified to equity in the consolidated financial statements. When the foreign
operation is disposed of, the cumulative amount in equity is transferred to the income statement as an
adjustment to the profit or loss arising on disposal.

Related Parties

For the purpose of these financial statements, a party is considered to be related to the Group if:

0]

{in)

{iiiy

{iv)

{v}

{vi}

the party has the ability, directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, to control the Group or
exercise significant influence over the Group in making financial and operating policy decisions, or has
jeint control over the Group;

the Group and the party are subject to common control;

the party is an associate of the Group or a joint venture in which the Group is a venturer;

the party is a member of key management personnel of the Group or the Group's parent, or a close
family member of such an individual, or is an entity under the contrel, joint control or significant influence

of such individuals;

the party is a close family member of a party referred to in (i) or is an entity under the control, joint
control or significant influence of such individuals; or

the party is a post-employment benefit ptan which is for the benefit of employees of the Group or of any
entity that is a related party of the Group.

Close family members of an individual are those family members who may be expected to influence, or be
influenced by, that individual in their dealings with the entity.
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31 December 2007

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D}
(vl Segment Reporting

A segmaent is a distinguishable component of the Group that is engaged either in providing products or
services (business segment), or in providing products or services within a particutar economic environment
{geographical segment), which is subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

In accordance with the Group's internal financial reporting system, the Group has chosen business segment
information as the primary reporting format and geographical segment information as the secondary raporting
format for the purposes of these financial statements.

Segment revenue, expensas, results, assets and liabilities include iterns directly attributable to a segmen: as well
as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis to that segment. For example, segment assets may include
trade receivables and plant and equipment, Segment revenug, expenses, assets, and liabilities are deterrnined
before intra-group balances and intra-group transactions are eliminated as pan of the consolidation process,
except to the extent that such intra-group balances and transactions are between group enterprises within a
single segment. Inter-segment pricing is based on similer terms as those available to other external parties.

Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the period ta acquire segment assets (hath
| tangible and intangible} that are expected to be used for more than one period.

Unallocated items mainly comprise tax balances.

3. TURNOVER
Turnover of the Group comprises revenue from hospitality related services, provision of education and learning
related services, dividend income and interest income. The amount of each significant category of revenue

recognised in turnover during the year is as follows:
The Group
2007 2006
HK$000 HK$'000
Hospitality related services 53,166 46,852
Education related services 22,665 -
Investment holding 29,423 32,058
105,254 79,010
Included in turnover above is:
The Group
2007 2006
HKS 000 HK$'000
Dividend income :
- listed securities 6,264 1,085
- unlisted securities - 7,200
6.264 3,295
Interest income :
- listed securities 846 1,596
- others 22,313 22,187
23,159 23,763
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OTHER NET {LOSSES)/INCOME

Advisory fee

Membership fees from education advisors

Net loss on forward foreign exchange contracts

Net profit on sale of plant and equipment

Net realised and unrealised {losses)/gains on trading securities
Net realised and unrealised foreign exchange gains

Others

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging:

Staff costs

Contributions to defined contribution plan
Salaries, wages and other benefits

Other items

Amortisation of intangible assets

Auditors’ remuneration

- audit services

- tax services

- other services

Depreciation of plant and eguipment

Impairment losses on trade receivables

Operating lease charges: minimum lease payments an property rentals

The Group
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,441 -
862 -
(404} {1,006)
- 16
(16,086) 27,882
8,666 19,460
256 365
{5,265) 46,717

The Group
2007 2006
HKS$'000 HK$000
1,012 485
35,551 28,090
36,563 28,575
62 66
1,030 822
17 50
455 296
2,208 1,382
211 839
3,130 776
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6. INCOME TAX

fa) Taxation in the consolidated income statement reprasents:

The Group

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK§$ 000

Current tax - Hong Kong
Over-provision in respect of prior years {1.,025) -

| Current tax - Overseas
Provision for the year 226 217
Over-provision in respect of prior years - (39)
226 178
Deferred tax

- Origination and reversal of temporary differences 835 2,276
- Utilisation of deferred tax assets previously recognised 351 -
- Recognition of deferred tax assets {1,059} {23,325}
3,287 (21,049)
2,488 {20,871}

The provision for Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 17.5% (2006: 17.5%) of the estimated assessable
piofits for the year ended 31 December 2007. Taxation for overseas subsidiaries is charged at the appropriate
current rates of taxation ruling in the relevant countries.

The Company is exempted from taxation in the Cayman Islands for a period of twenty years from 1989 .:nder
the provisions of Section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands.

{b) Reconcilliation between tax expense and accounting profit at applicable tax rates:

2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
Profit before taxation 18,695 74,581
Income tax using Mong Kong tax rates 3,271 12,062
Tax effect of non-taxable income 8,301) {12,618)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses 5,128 1,481
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 4,205 1,341
Current year's deferred tax assets not recognised 269 135
Recegnition of deferred tax assets {1,059} (23,325}
Over-provision in respect of prior years {1,025} (39
Actual tax expense/(credit) 2,488 (20,871}
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6.

INCOME TAX (CONT'D}

fc) Current taxation in the balance sheet represents;

Balance of Hong Kong

Profits Tax provision relating to pricr years -

Provisional Overseas Tax paid

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
1,025 - 1,025
{328) (266) - -
{328} 759 - 1,025

Directors’ remuneration disclosed pursuant to section 161 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance is as follows:

Executive Directors
Kwek Leng Beng
Vincent Yeo Wee Eng
Kwek Leng Joo

Kwek Leng Pack

Gan Khai Choon
Lawrence Yip Wai Lam

Non-Executive Directors
Wong Hong Ren
Hon. Chan Bernard Charnwut

Independent
Non-Exacutive Directors
Dr. Lo Ka Shui
Lee Jackson @ Li Chik Sin
Teoh Teik Kee

Salaries,

allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2007
fees in kind bonuses contributions Total
HKS$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
750 - - - 750
100 1,341 - 33 1,474
200 - - - 200
200 - - - 200
200 - - - 200
100 113 - - 213
200 415 - - 615
194 - - - 194
100 - - - 100
288 - - - 288
194 - - - 194
2,526 1,869 - 33 4,428
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7.  DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION {CONT'D)

Salaries,
allowances Retirement
Directors’ and benefits  Discretionary scheme 2006
faes in kind bonuses contributions Total
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HKS$'000
Executive Directors
Kwek Leng Beng 750 - - - 750
Vincent Yeo Wee Eng 100 1,168 16 27 1.311
Kwek Leng Joo 200 - - - 200
Kwek Leng Peck 200 - - - 200
Gan Khai Choon 200 - - - 200
Lawrence Yip Wai Lam 100 52 - - 152
Non-Executive Directors
Wong Hong Ren 200 396 - - 596
Hon. Chan Bernard Charnwut 194 - - - 194
Independent
Non-Executive Directors
Dr. Lo Ka Shui 100 - ~ - 100
l.ee Jackson @ Li Chik Sin 288 - - - 288
Teoh Teik Kee 194 - - - 194
2,526 1,616 16 27 4,185

8. INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments, three (2008: three) are directors whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 7. The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the other two (2006: two) individuals are as follows:

Salaries and other emoluments
Discretionary bonuses
Retirement scheme contributions

The Group
2007 2006
HKS 000 HKS'(00
1,404 1,269
518 57
55 42
1,977 1,268

The emoluments of the two (2006: two) individuals with the highest emoluments are within the following bang.

HX$Nil - HK$1,000,000
HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000
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10.

1.

12,

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY
The consolidated prafit attrisutable to equity shareho!ders of the Company includes a profit of HK$34,826,000
{2006: HK$90,892,000) which has been dealt with in the Company’s financial staternents.

DIVIDENDS
{a} Dividends payable to equity shareholders of the Company attributable to the year
The Group
2007 2006
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
Final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date of HK3 cents
per share (2006: HK& cents per share) 11,494 22,988

The final dividend proposed after the balance sheet date has nat been recognised as a liability at the balance
sheet date.

{b) Dividends attributable to the previous financial year, approved and paid during the year

The Group
2007 2006
HKS$'000 HK$000
Final dividend in respect of the previcus financial year, approved
and paid during the year, of HK6 cents per share
(2006: HK3 cents per share) 22,988 11,494

EARNINGS PER SHARE
{a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company of HX$14,091,000 (2006: HK$30,152,000) and 383,125,524 (2006: 383,125,524) ordinary shares in
issue during the year.

{b) Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share is not applicable as there are no dilutive potential ordinary shares during the financial year.

SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group’s business and geographical segments. Business
segment information is chosen as the primary reporting format because this is more relevant to the Group’s internal
financial reporting.

Business segments
The Group comprises the following main business segments:
Investment holding:The activities of investing.

Hospitality related services:The provision of hotel management services, hotel reservation, and revenue
management services, risk management services and procurement services.

Educaticn related services:The provision of education and learning related services.
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12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT’'D)

Hospitality Education
Investment Holding Related Services Related Services Consolidated
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

HKS’000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$°000

Revenue from

external customers 29,423 32,058 53,166 46,952 22,665 - 105,254 79,010
Praofit from operations 7,375 66,944 12,573 7.637 1,225 - 21,173 74,581
Share of losses

of associate - - {2,478) - - - {2,478) -
Profit before taxation 18,695 74,581
Income tax (2,488) 20,87
Profit after taxation 16,207 35,452

Depreciation and

amortisation

for the year 1,108 950 585 498 577 - 2,270 1,448
Segment assets 580,314 634,164 75,458 67,374 64,672 - 720,444 701,538
Investment in

associate - - 10,045 - - - 10,045 -~
Unallocated assets 18,234 21,083
Total assets 748,723 722,621
Segment liabilities 7.072 6,051 20,353 13,481 23,079 - 50,509 19,512
Unallocated liabilities - 759
Totzl liabilities 50,509 20,271

Capital expenditure
incurred during
the year - 3,748 609 259 1,085 - 1,694 4,007
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12. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONT'D)
Geographical segments

The Group's Investing activities are mainly carried out in Hong Kang and Singapore. The hospitality related services
are carried out by the subsidiaries based in the United States. The education related services are carried out by the
jeintly controlled entity in Singapore,

In presenting information on the basis of geographical segments, segment revenue in relation to invesiment holding
is based on the geographical location of investments. Segment revenus in relation to hospitality related services
and education related services is based on the geographical location of customers. Segment asseis and capital
expenditure are based on the geographical location of the assets.

Hong Kong United States Singapore Consolidated
2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$000 HKS'000 HK$000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000

Revenue from external
CUStOMErs 19,208 23,49 58,832 51,991 21,214 3,528 105,254 79,010

Segment assets 389,939 460,924 240,255 214,213 90,250 26,401 720,444 701,638

Capital expenditure
incurred during
the year - 619 609 259 1,085 3,128 1,694 4,007
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13. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(a) The Group

Plant,
Machinery Motor
and Equipment Vehicles Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'00¢

Cost
At 1 January 2006 12,609 5,086 17,695
Exchange adjustments 18 - 18
Additions 291 3,692 3,983
Disposals (33 (2.352) (2,385,
Written off during the year (3.202) - {3,202)
At 31 December 2006 9,683 6,426 16,109
At 1 January 2007 9,683 6,426 16,109
Exchange adjustments 130 - 130
Acquisition of interest in jointly controlled entity (Note 17) 1,465 - 1,465
Additions 1,694 - 1,694
Written off during the year (293) - (293)
At 31 December 2007 12,679 6,426 19,105
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2006 11,235 1,675 12,910
Exchange adjustrments 13 - 13
Charge for the year 475 907 1,382
Disposals (33} (1,548} {1,581}
Written off during the year {3.202) - {3.202}
At 31 December 2006 8,488 1,034 9,622
At 1 January 2007 8,488 1,034 9,622
Exchange adjustments 42 - 42
Charge for the year 1.119 1,089 2,208
Written off during the year (293 - (293
At 31 December 2007 9,356 2,123 11,479
Net book value
At 31 December 2007 3,323 4,303 7,626
At 31 December 2006 1,195 5,392 6,587
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13. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT {(CONT'D)

ib)

The Company

Cost

At 1 January 2006
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2006

At 1 January 2007
Written off

At 31 December 2007
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2006
Charge for the year
Disposals

At 31 December 2006
At 1 January 2007
Charge for the year
Written off

At 31 December 2007
Net book value

At 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2006

Plant,
Machinery Motor

and Equipment Vehicles Total
HKS'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000
2,972 5,086 8,058
56 3,692 3,748
(33} (2,352) (2,385}
2,995 6,426 9,421
2,995 6.426 9.421
(43) - 43
2,852 6,426 9,378
2,920 1,675 4,585
43 907 950
(33} (1,548} {1,581}
2,930 1,034 3,964
2,930 1,034 3,964

19 1,088 1,108
(43) - (43)
2,906 2123 5,029
46 4,303 4,349

65 5,392 5,457
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14.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Cost

At 1 January 2006

Additions

Exchange adjustments

At 31 December 2006

At 1 January 2007

Acquisition of interest in jeintly controlled entity {Note 17)
Exchange adjustments

AL 31 December 2007

Amortisation and Impairment Losses

At 1 January 2006
Charge for the year
Exchange adjustments
At 31 December 2006

At 1 January 2007
Charge for the year

At 31 December 2007

Net book value
At 31 December 2007

At 31 December 2006

The Group
Trademarlks
HK$'000

1,031
24

2
1,057
1,057
37,035
1,797

39,849

39,032

302

The amortisation charge for the year is included in “administrative expenses” in the consolidated income staterrent.

As at 31 December 2007, the intangible assets include the Group’s share of the jointly controlled entity’s trademarks
amounting to HK$37,085,000 {20086: Nil). These trademarks have indefinite useful lives and are not amortised.

There is no contractual or other legal rights that restrict the use of the trademarks and the jointly controlled ent ty
has the requisite resources to manage the trademarks efficiently. The jointly controlled entity operatas in an
industry that is stable with regard to customer demand. While there may be demand fluctuatiens in the short run,

demand is consistent in the industry in the long run.
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14,

15.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONT'D)
Impairment test for trademarks with indefinite useful lives

The managerment tests the trademarks for impairment annually, or more frequently if there are indications that the
trademarks might be impaired.

The recoverable amount of the trademarks is determined based on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use
cash flow projections based on financiai budgets approved by the management covering a five-year period.

Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations:

2007

%

Growth in revenue year-on-year 7
Gross profit margin 60
Discount rate 8

The growth in revenue and gross profit margin are based on past perfermance and management'’s expectations of market
development. The discount rate used is pre-tax and reflects the specific risks refating to the jointly controiled entity.

Any adverse change in assumptions could reduce the recoverable amount 1o below the present carrying amount.
All assumptions are in line with the management’s understanding of the business environment in which the
jointly controlled entity operates. The key assumptions will be reviewed periodically in accordance with HKAS 36,
Impairment of Assets.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company
2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000
Unlisted equity shares, at cost:
At beginning of the year 220,860 220,860
Additions during the year 38,740 -
At end of the year 259,600 220,860
Less : impairment loss - (31,419
259,600 189,441

During the financial year, the Group incorporated two wholly owned subsidiaries, CES Education Holdings Pte. Ltd.
and CES Hospitality Holdings Limited with total paid up share capital of HK$38,740,000 and HK$1 respectively.

In prior years, in view of losses incurred by a subsidiary, the Company assessed the recoverable amount of the
subsidiary. Based on this assessment, the carrying amount of this subsidiary was written down. In 2007, following
improvements in the subsidiary's operating cash flows and results, the Company reassessed its estimates and
HK$31,419,000 (2006 HK$30,700,000) of the impairment loss previously recognised was reversed.

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries which principally affected the results, assets or
liakilities of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.
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15. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES {CONT'D}

Place of  Particulars of Proportion of Ownership Interest
Incorporation Issued and Group's

Company Name/ and Paid Up Effective Held by Held by

Principal Activities Operation Capital Interast Company Subsidiary
% % %

Principal direct

and indirect subsidiaries

SWAN Holdings Limited Bermuda 33,345,333 85 85 -

{Investment holding) shares

of US81 each

SWAN USA, Inc. United 100 common a5 - 100
(Holding company) States of stocks of
America  US$0.01 each

Richfield Hospitality Inc. United 100 common g5 - 100
{Investmant holding and States of stocks of
provision of hospitality America US$1,000.01
related services) each
Sceptre Hospitality United 100 common 85 - 100
Resources Inc. States of stocks of
{Provision of reservation America  US$0.01 each

system services)
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16.

INTEREST IN ASSOCIATE

Unlisted shares, at cost
Share of net liabilities
Loan to asscciate

* Less than HK$1,000.

The Group
2007 2006
HK$000 HKS$’000
-% -
{2,020} -
12,065 -
10,045 -

The loan to associate is denominated in US dollars and is non-trade in nature, unsecured and interest-free. The
settlement of the amount is neither planned nor likely to oceur in the foreseeable future. As this amount is, in
substance, a part of the Group's net investment in the associate, it is stated at cost less accumulated impairment.

Details of the Group’s interest in the associate are as follows:

Form of
Name of Associate/ Business
Principal Activities Structure
Tune Hospitality Incorporated

Investments FZCO

{To develop and own

a portfolio of “no-frills”
limited service hotels
in ASEAN)

Place of
Incorporation

and Operation Paid Up Capital

Dubaif
ASEAN

Proportion of
Ownership Interest

The summarised financial infermation in respect of the Group’s associate is set out beiow:

Assets
HK$'000

2007
100 per cent 26,398
Group's effective interest 10,559

Liabilities
HKS$'000

{31,448}

{12,579

Particulars of Group's

Issued and Effective Held by

Interest Subsidiary

Y% %

5 shares of 40 40
Dhs 100,000
each

Equity Revenue Loss

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000

5,050 33 {6,195}

2,020 13 (2,478}
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17. INTEREST IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY
On 1 June 2007, the Group acquired a 50% equity interest in MindChamps Heldings Pte. Ltd. ("MindChamps").

Details of the Group’s interest in the jointly controlled entity are as follows:

Proportion of
Ownership Interest

Name of Jointly Form of Place of Particulars of Group's

Controlled Entity/ Business Incorporation Issued and Effective Held by

Principal Activities Structure and Operation Paid Up Capital Interest Subsidiary
% %

MindChamps Holdings Incorporated Singapore 15,000,000 50 50

Pte. Ltd. (Provision of shares

education and learning
related services)

The effect of the acquisition of the interest in the jointly controlled entity is set out below:

Fair value ancl
carrying amounts:

HK$ 000
Plant and equipment 1,465
Intangible assets 37,085
Trade and other receivables 12,876
Trade and other payables (12,876}
Net identifiable assets and liabilities — Group's 50% share 38,650

Consideration paid, satisfied in cash 38,550

The jointly controlled entity was dormant from its incorporation date to 30 May 2007 when it acquired certain plant

and equipment, intangible assets, trade and other receivables and trade and cther payables. The Group acquired

a 50% equity interest in MindChamps on 1June 2007. Acccrdingly, had the Group’s acquisition of the jointly

controlled entity taken place at the beginning of the financial year, there would not be any significant impact on the
‘ Group's results for the current year.

Summary financial information on jointly controlled entity — the Group's effective interest:

2007 2006

HK&000 HK$'000

Non-current assets 41,948 -
Current assets 23,823 -
Current liabilities {23,079) -
Net assets 42,692 -
Turnover 22,693 -
Expenses {20,409) -
Profit for the year 2,284 -
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18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

{a)

fb}

Defarred tax assets recognised:

The Group

The components of deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated balance sheet and the movements

during the year are as follows:

Deductible
Tax temporary Investment

losses differences Allowances Total
HK$'000 HK'$000 HK'$000 HK$000

Deferred tax arising from:
At 1 January 2006 - - - -
Credited to profit or loss 18,152 2,897 - 21,049
Exchange adjustments 29 5 - 34
At 31 December 2006 18,181 2,902 - 21,083
At 1 January 2007 18,181 2,902 - 21,083
{Chargedlfcredited to profit or loss {3,511) (835) 1,059 (3,287
Exchange adjustments 61 9 40 110
At 31 December 2007 14,731 2,076 1,099 17,906

Deferred tax assets not recognised:

The following temporary differences have not been recognised:

Deductible temporary differences
Tax losses

The Group and Company

2007 2006
HK$'000 HKS$’000
1.076 1.070
26,720 25,227
27,796 26,297

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of these items because it is not probable that future
taxable profits will be available against which the Group and the Company can utilise the benefits. Tax losses
of HK$286,720,000 {2006 HK$25,227,000) do not expire under the respective countries’ tax legislations.
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19. TRADING SECURITIES

The Group The Company
| 2007 2006 2007 2006
' HKS$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000
|
l Equity securities (at market value}
: - Listed outside Hong Kong
- fellow subsidiaries 67,725 96,391 67,725 96,391
' Debt securities (at market value)
- Listed outside Hong Kong - 61,947 - 61,947
Other securities {at market value)
- Unlisted 46,501 23,303 38,898 17,784
114,226 181,641 106,623 176,122

Included in other financial assets is an amount of HK$7,603,000 {200€: HK$5,519,000) relating to investment
securities held in respect of the Group's defined contribution plan {see note 27}

20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

| The Group The Company
, 2007 2006 2007 2006
| HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$ 000 HIK$'000
|
| Trade receivables 16,791 12,894 37 439
Less
| Allowance for doubtful debts (note 20(b}) {219) {949) - -
16,572 11,945 737 439
. Other receivables, deposits and prepayments 10,145 5,861 1,815 2,839
. Amounts owing by subsidiaries - - 32,034 1,529
Amounts owing by affiliated companies 652 278 184 167
Amounts owing by other shareholder
of jointly controlled entity 885 - - -
Dividend receivable - 7,200 - 7,200
Derivative financiaf instruments - 475 - 475
|
28,254 25,759 34,770 12,449

All trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered within one year. The amounts owing by subsidiaries, affiliated
companies and other shareholder of jointly controlled entity are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

' Affiliated companies comprise subsidiaries of the hoiding company.
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONT'D)

{a)

b)

Ageing analysis

The ageing analysis of trade receivables {net of impairment losses) is as follows:

The Group The Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000

Current or less than 1 month overdue 11,654 8,867 40 -

1 to 3 months overdue 1,873 1,075 681 9
More than 3 months overdue but less

than 12 months overdue 3,045 2,003 16 430

16,572 11,945 737 439

The Group's credit policy is set out in note 24, Trade receivables are due within 30 days from the date of billing.

Impairment of trade receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade receivables are recorded using an allowance account unless the Group
is satisfied that recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the impairment loss is written off against

trade debtors directly,

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts duri

ng the year is as follows:

The Group The Company

2007 2006 2007 2006

HKS'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000

At 1 January 949 1,648 - 155
Impairment loss recognised/{reversed) 211 839 - {108}
Uncoltectible amounts written off {944) {1,542) - {47)
Exchange adjustmenis 3 4 - -
At 31 December 219 949 - -
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20. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES {CONT'D)
{c) Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither individually nor collectively considered t2 be impaired
are as follows:

The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$"000 HK$'000
Neither past due nor impaired 6,818 5,650 40 -
Less than 1 month overdue 4,836 3,217 681 e
1 to 3 months overdue 1,873 1,075 - -
5,709 4,292 681 9
13,527 9,942 721 9

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a wide range of customers for whoem there was
no recent history of default,

Receivables that were past due but not impatred relate to cusiomers having a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, management kelieves that n¢ impairment allowance is necessary in
respect of these balances as there has not been a significant change in credit gquality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

21. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HKS000 HK$'000 HKS$’'000 HK$000
Deposits with banks and other
financial institutions 444,995 444,264 277,086 286,192
Cash at bank and in hand 63,838 42,985 6,232 7,822
513,833 487,249 283,318 294,014

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum relating to cash and cash equivalents at the balance sheet
date for the Group and the Company are 4.75% (2008: 4.76%) and 5.05% {2006: 4.65%) respectively. Interest
rates reprice at intervals within twelve months.
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22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

23.

Trade payables
Other payables and accrued charges

The Group The Company
2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
6,218 1,281 70 204
44,291 18,231 7.251 6,753
50,509 19,612 7,321 6,957

All of the trade and other payables are expected to be settled within one year,

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables with the following ageing analysis as of the balance sheet date:

Due within 1 month or on demand
Due after 1 month but within 3 months
Due after 3 months but within 6 months

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

{a)

The Group

At 1 January 2006

Dividends approved in respect of the
previous financial year {(Ncte 10(b)}

Profit for the year

Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries

At 31 December 2008

At 1 January 2007

Dividends approved in respect of the
previous financia’ year (Note 10(b))

Profit for the year

Exchange differences on translation
of financial statements of
foreign subsidiaries

Exchange differences on monetary

items forming part of net investment in

a foreign operation

At 31 December 2007

The Group The Company

2007 2006 2007 2006
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS'000
48,140 19,158 7,205 6,864

2,049 269 78 B

320 85 38 85

50,509 19,512 1,321 6,957

Share Exchange Revenue Minority Total
Capital Reserve Reserve Tota! Interests Equity
HKS$"000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
383,126 519 207,174 589,781 28,041 617,822
- - {11,494} {11,494} - (11,494}

- - 90,152 90,152 5,300 95,452

- 481 - 481 89 570
383,126 (38) 285,832 668,920 33,430 702,350
383,126 {38) 285,832 668,920 33,430 702,350
- - (22,988) {22,988} - {22,988)

- - 14,091 14,091 2,118 16,207

- 2,308 - 2,308 114 2,422

- 223 - 223 - 223
383,126 2,493 276,935 662,554 35,660 698,214
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23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT'D)
{b) The Company

Share Revenue
Capital Reserve Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 2006 383,126 206,977 590,103
Dividends approved in respect of the previous
financial year {(Note 10(b)} - (11,494) {11,494}
Profit for the year - 90,892 90,892
At 31 December 2006 383,126 286,375 669,501
At 1 January 2007 383,126 286,375 669,501
Dividends approved in respect of the previous
financial year (Note 10{b)) - (22,988) (22,988)
Profit for the year - 34,826 34,826
At 31 December 2007 383,126 298,213 681,339
fe} Share capital
{iy  Authorised and issued share capital
The Company
2007 2006
No. of No. of
shares HKS$’'000 shares HKS'000
Authorised:
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each 2,720,615,042 2,720,615 2,720,615,042 2,720,615
The Company
2007 2006
No. of No. of
shares HKS 000 shares HKS$"000
Issued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares of HK$1 each 383,125,524 383,126 383,125,624 3B3.126

The holders of ardinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as declared from time to time and are
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary shares rank egqually with regard
to the Company’s residual assets.
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23. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONT'D)

fet

fd)

fel

if)

Share capital (cont'd)
(il Share opticn scheme

The Share Option Scheme (the “2005 Scheme”) for eligible persons, in¢luding employees {including
the executive directors) and non-executive directors of the Company and its associates, was adopted by
the Company on 27 April 2005 (" Adoption Date”). Under the 2005 Scheme, the maximum number of
shares that may be granted by the Directors shall not exceed 10% of the share capital of the Company
in issue at the Adoption Date unless the Company obtains a fresh approval from its Shareholders. The
maximurm number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all cutstanding options and yet

to be exercised under the 2005 Scheme and any other option scheme(s) of the Company shall not in
aggregate exceed 30% of the Shares in issue from time to time. The subscription price of shares under
the 2005 Scherme shall not be less than the highest of: (i} the official closing price of the Shares as
stated in daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the Offer Date; (i) the average of the official
closing price of the Shares as stated in daily quotations sheets of the Stock Exchange for the 5 business
days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and {iii) the nominal value of a Share, The Executive Share
Option Scheme (the "1997 Scheme ") adopted by the Company on 11 June 1997 was terminated upon
the 2005 Scheme becoming effective.

Throughout the financial year, no share option was granted and outstanding.
Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of the financiat
statements of foreign operations and exchange differences on monetary items which form part of the Group's
net investment in foreign operations, provided certain conditions arg met. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 2(t).

Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2007, the aggregate amount of reserves available for distribution to equity shareholders of the
Company was HK$298,213,000 {2006: HK$286,375,000). After the balance sheet date, the directors proposed
a final dividend of HK3 cents per ordinary share {2006: HK6 cents per share), amounting HK$11,494,000 (2006:
HK$22,988,000). This dividend has not been recognised as a liability at the balance sheet date.

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders,
by pricing products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost. The Group's capital comprises its equity.

The Group actively and regutarly reviews and manages its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments 1o the capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. It is the Group’s strategy
1o keep the net debi-to-adjusied capital ratio as low as feasible. In order 10 maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise
new debt financing or sell assets to reduce debt. As at 31 December 2007, the Group did not have any net debt.

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks arises in the normal course of the Group's business.
The Group is also exposed to equity price risk arising fram its equity investments in other entities and moverrents
in its awn equity share price.

These risks are fimited by the Greup's financial management policies and practices described below.
{a} Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade and other receivables, listed debt investments and
derivative financial instruments. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these credit
risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

In respect of trade and other receivables, credit evaluations are performed on all customers requiring cradit
over a certain amount. These receivables are due within 1 month from the date of billing, Debtors with
balances that are more than 3 months overdue are requested to settle all outsianding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not cbtain collateral from customers.

Investments are normally only in liquid securities and with counterparties that have a credit rating equal

to or better than the Group. Transactions involving derivative financial instruments are with counterparties
with sound credit ratings and with whom the Group has a signed netting agreement. Given their high credit
ratings. management does not expect any investment counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each customer.
The default risk of the industry and country in which customers cperate also has an influence on credit risk but
to a lesser extent.

The maximum exposure 1o credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset, including
derivative financal instruments, in the balance sheet after deducting any impairment allowance.

Further quantitative disclosure in respect of the Group's exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are set out in note 20.

(b} Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible for their own cash management, including the
short-term investment of cash surptuses. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and expected
liquidity requirements, to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash angd readily realisable marketable
securities to meet its liguidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The total contractual undiscounted cash flows of the Group's and the Company’s non-derivative financial
liabilities are the same as their carrying amounts as their remaining contractual maturities are within one year.
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {CONT'D)

el

{di

interest rate risk

The Group is affected by changes in interest rates 10 the extent such changes have on interest on its cash
balances and debt investments.

The weighted average effective interest rates per annum relating to cash and cash equivalents at the balance
sheet date is set out in note 21.

Sensitivity analysis

In managing interest rate risk the Group aims to reduce the impact of short term fluctuations on the Group's
earnings. Over the longer term, however, permanent changes in foreign exchange and interest rates would
have an impact on consolidated earnings.

At 31 December 2007, it is estimated that a general increase {decrease} of one hundred basis peints in
interest rates on the Group's and the Company's ¢ash balances, with all other variables held constant, would
increase (decrease) the Group's and the Company's profit after tax and revenue reserve by approximately
HK$4,946,000 {2006: HK$4,499,000} so far as the effect on interest-hearing financial instruments is
concerned. There is no impact on the other components of consolidated equity.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred at
the balance sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to interest rate risk for both derivative and non-
derivative financial instruments in existence at that date. The one hundred basis points increase (decrease}
represents management's assessment of a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the period until
the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2006.

The Group's debt instruments as at 31 December 2006 comprised fixed rate bands. Accordingly, no sensitivity
analysis is performed on the impact of any changes in interest rates.

Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk through deposits and withdrawals of fixed deposits, sales and
purchases of the trading securities that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of
the operations 1o which they relate. The currencies giving rise to these risks are Sterling Pound, Singapore
Dollar, Philippine Peso, Euro and Japanese Yen.

The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its specific currency risks. However, forward exchange
contracts that do not qualify for hedge accounting are accounted for as trading instruments. As at 31
December 2007, the Group had no outstanding forward exchange contracts (2006 : HK$106,958.000).

it  Recognised assets and liabilities

Changes in the fair value of forward exchange contracts that economically hedge monetary assets and
liabilities in foreign currencies are recognised in profit and loss (see note 2(g)). The net fair value of
forward exchange contracts used by the Group and the Company as economic hedges of monetary
assets and liabilities in foreign currencies at 31 Dacember 2007 was HKSNIl (2006: HK$475,000). These
amounts are recoegnised as derivative financial instruments,

In respect of other trade receivables and payables held in currencies other than the functional currency of
the operations to which they relate, the Group ensures that the net exposure is kept to an acceptable level.
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
{d) Foreign currency risk (cont'd)

(i)  Exposure to foreign currency risk

The following table details the Group’s and the Company’s exposure at the balance sheet date to
currency risk arising from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in a currency other than the
functional currency of the Company. Other group entities do not have exposure to currency risk at the
balance sheet date.

The Group and Company 2007 2006
Sterling Singapore Philippine Sterling Singapore Japanesa
Pound Dollars Pesos fFuros Pound Dollars Euros Yen
‘000 000 000 ‘000 ‘000 ‘000 000 000
Trading securities 4,319 - 4,312 - 6,331 - 2,533 64,813
Trade and other
receivables 47 268 - 13 28 265 - -
Cash and cash
equivalents 10,5639 166 - 5,059 5,000 3,765 - -
Trade and other
payables {4) (193) - - {4) {94) - -

Gross exposure arising
from recognised
assets and liabilities 14,901 241 4,312 5072 11,355 3,936 2,633 64,813

! Notional amounts of
forward exchange
contracts - - - - 5,000 - {2,613} 165,660

Overall net exposure 14,801 241 4312 5072 16,355 3.936 (80) (847,

tiii)  Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the change in foreign exchange rates had
occurred at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the Group’s and the Company's exposure to
currency risk for hoth derivative and non-derivative financial instrumants in existence at that date.

A 10% strengthening of the following foreign currencies against the functional currency of each of the
| Group’s entities at the balance sheet date would increase (decrease) the Group's and the Company’s
| profit after tax and revenue reserve by the amounts shown belew. There is no impact on the other
| componentis of consolidated equity. The analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular, interest
rates, remain constant.
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)

id)

{a)

Foreign currency risk {cont’d)
{iiiy  Sensitivity analysis (cont'd)

Increase in profit after
tax and revenue reserve

The Group and Company 2007 2006
HKS$'000 HK$'000
Sterling Pound 23,089 24,901
Singapore Dollars 130 1,993
Phiiippine Pesos 80 -
Euros 5,729 81)
Japanese Yen - (G}

A 10% weakening of the above currencies against the functional currency of each of the Group’s entities
at the balance sheet date would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above currencies to the
amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant.

The stated changes represent management's assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual balance sheet date. In this respect, it is assumed
that the pegged rate between the Hong Kong dollar and the United States dollar would be matertally
unaffected by any changes in movement in value of the United States dollar against other currencies.
Results of the analysis as presented in the above tabie represent the effect of the Group's and the
Company’s profit after tax and revenue reserve measured in the respective foreign currencies, translated
into Hong Kong dollar at the exchange rate ruling at the balance sheet date for presentation purposes.
The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2006.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price changes arising from equity investments classified as trading securities
{see note 19).

The Group’s listed equity investments are listed on the London Stock Exchange and The Phitippine Stock
Exchange, Inc.. Decisions to buy or sell trading securities are based on daily monitering of the performance of
individuat securities compared to other industry indicators, as well as the Group's liquidity needs.

A 5% increase {decrease) in the underlying equity prices of the equity investments listed on the London Stock
Exchange at the reporting date would increase {decrease) the Group's and the Company's profit after tax

and revenue reserve by approximately HK$3,346,000 (2006:HK$4,820,000). There is no impact on the other
components of consolidated equity. The analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

In respect of the Group's equity investment listed on The Philippine Steck Exchange, Inc., based on the
historical trend analysis, management does not expect significant equity price movements on this investment
and hence, any significant impact on the Group's and the Company's profit after tax, revenue reserve and
other components of consolidated equity, assuming that all other variables remain constant,
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONT'D)
{e) Equity price risk {cont'd)

The Group alsc halds investmants in unlisted marketable equity mutual funds. Included in such investments
is an amount of HK$7,603,000 (2006: HK$5,519,000) relating to investments held in respect of the Group's
defined contribution plan. Any movement in the equity price would not have any impact on the Group's
profit after tax as there would be an equal and opposite change in the staff costs {note 5} in response to the
changes in the equity price. A 10% increase {decrease) in the net asset value of the remaining balance of
the investments in unlisted marketable equity mutual funds at the reporting date would increase (decrease)
the Group’s and the Company’s profit after tax and revenue reserve by approximately HK$3,850,000
(2006:HK$1,778,000). There is no impact on the other componenits of consolidated equity. The analysis
assumes that all other variabie remain constant,

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that the reasonably possible changes in stock
prices, net asset values or other risk variables had occurred at the balance sheet date and had been appliec
to the exposure to equity price risk in existence at that date. The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in the relevant stock price, net asset value or the relevant risk
variables over the period until the next annual balance sheet date. The analysis is performed on the same
hasis for 2006.

(f!l  Fair values

All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially different fram their fair values as at 31
December 2007 and 2006.

The following summarises the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financie)
instruments.

{i)  Securities
The fair value is based on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date without any deduction for
transaction costs. |f a quoted market price is not available, the fair value is estimated using valuation
technique, which includes recent market transactions, pricing models or discounted cash flow analysis.
(i)  Derivatives
The fair value of forward exchange contracts is based on broker guotes. These quotes are tested for
reasonableness by discounting estimated future cash flows based on the terms and maturity of each
contract and using market interest rates for a similar instrument at the measurement date.
fi  Other financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of financial assets and liabilities with maturity of less than one year {in¢cluding

trade and other receivahles, cash and cash equivalents ard trade and other payables) are assumed to
approximate their fair values.
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25.

26.

MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group entered
into the following material related party transactions:

The Group
2007 2006
HK$000 HKS$ 000
Affiliated companies
Dividend income 2,044 1,095
Income from provision of hospitality and other related services 3,503 3.821

Key management personnel remuneration

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group, including amounts paid to the Company’s directors as
disclosed in note 7 and certain of the highest paid employees as disclosed in note B, is as follows:

The Group
2007 2006
HK$’000 HK$'000
Short-term employee benefits 3,879 3,027
Total remuneration is included in “staff costs™ {see note B}
COMMITMENTS
{a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2007 net provided for in the financial statements were
as follows:
The Group
2007 2006
HK$’'000 HK$'000
Commitments in respect of :
- purchase of plant and machinery - 15,429

- capital contribution to an associate 144,000 -

(b} At 31 December 2007, the tota! future minimum lease payments under a non-cancellable operating lease in
respect of an office space are payable as follows:

The Group
2007 2006
HK$000 HK$'000
Within 1 year 4,850 958
After 1 year but within 9 years 7.685 2,992
12,535 3,950

The above lease expires in November 2011 and the Group has the cption to renew the lease for an additional
five-year term pricr to the end of the lease term. The lease does not include any contingent rental.

As at 31 December 2007, the minimum lease payments include the Group's share of the jointly controlled
entity operating lease rental for office space and premises. The lease expires in May 2010.
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27.

28.

29,

30.

31.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

In United States, the Group operates a defined contributicn plan {the “Plan”}. Under the Plan, employees may elect
ta contribute a percentage of their regular compensation to the Plan and to direct the distribution of these amounts
among the Plan’s investment options. The Group matches 50% of each employee’s contributions up to a iaximum
of 6% of the employee’s annual base compensation.

At the balance sheet date, approximately RK$7,603,000 (2006: HK$5,519,000) has been included in trading
securities {see note 19).

IMMEDIATE AND ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANIES

The immediate holding company at 31 December 2007 is City Developments Limited. The Directors consider the
ultimate holding company at 31 December 2007 to be Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd. Both companies
are incorporated in the Republic of Singapore. The immediate holding company produces financial statements
available for public use.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT
Subsequent to the balance sheet date, the Group sold one unit of its residential property held for resale for a
consideration of HK$2.6 million giving rise to a gain of approximately HK$3.8 million (net of estimated disposal costs),

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Notes 14 and 15 contain information about the assumptions and their risk factors relating to impairment of
intangible assets and interests in subsidiaries.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2007

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the following amendments, new
standards and interpretations which are not yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2007 and which have not
been adopted in these financial statements.

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of what the impact of these amendments, new standards
and new interpretations is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded that the
adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial position.

In addition, HKFRS 8, Operating segments, which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2009, may result in new or amended disclosures in the financial statements.

80 annual report 2007




PRODUCED BY

Group Corporate Affairs,
Hong Leong Group Singapore
www.hongleong.com.sg

DESIGNED BY
Pinkocchio Pte Ltd




www.ceslimited.com




THIS CIRCULAR IS IMPORTANT AND REQUIRES YOUR IMMEDIATE ATTENTION

If you are in any doubt as to any aspect about this circular or as to the action to be taken, you should
consult a licensed securities dealer, bank manager, solicitor, professional accountant or other

professional adviser.

If you have sold or transferred all your shares in City e-Solutions Limited, you should at once hand

this circular, together with the enclosed form of proxy, to the purchaser or transferee or to the bank,
licensed securities dealer or other agent through whom the sale or transfer was effected for

transmission to the purchaser or transferee.

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited takes no responsibility for the contents of this circular,
makes no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaims any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the

contents of this circular.
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A letter from the board of directors of City e-Solutions Limited is set out on pages 3 tcf‘S of this

circular.

A notice convening the annual general meeting of City e-Solutions Limited to be held on Friday, 18
April 2008 at Room 2803, 28th Floor, Great Eagle Centre, No. 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
at 10:00 a.m. is set out on pages 13 to 16 of this circular.

Whether or not you are able to attend the meeting, you are requested to complete and return the
accompanying form of proxy in accordance with the instructions printed thereon to the principal office

of the Company at Room 2803, 28th Floor, Great Eagle Centre, No. 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong
Kong as soon as possible and in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the

holding of the meeting or any adjournment thereof.

Completion and return of the form of proxy shall not preclude you from attending and voling in person

at the meeting or any adjournment thereof should you so wish.
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DEFINITIONS

In this circular, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions have the following

meanings:

“AGM”

“associate”
“Board”

“Companies Law”

“Company”

“connected person”

“Directors”

“General Mandates”

“Group”

“Hong Kong”

“Issue Mandate™

“Latest Practicable Date”

“Listing Rules”

“Notice of AGM”

“Proposals”™

“Repurchase Mandate”

the annual general meeting of the Company to be held at
Room 2803, 28th Floor, Great Eagle Centre, No. 23 Harbour
Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong on Friday, 18 April 2008 at 10:00
a.m., notice of which is set out on pages 13 to 16 of this
circular

has the meaning ascribed to it by the Listing Rules
the board of Directors

the Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands

City e-Solutions Limited, a company incorporated in the
Cayman Islands with limited liability, the shares of which are
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange

has the meaning ascribed to it by the Listing Rules
the directors of the Company

the Issue Mandate and the Repurchase Mandate to be sought
at the AGM as set out in the Notice of AGM

the Company and its subsidiaries

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the People’s
Republic of China

the mandate to allot and issue Shares as sel out in the Notice
of AGM

19 March 2008, being the latest practicable date prior to the
printing of this circular for the purpose of ascertaining certain
information contained herein

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange

the notice convening the AGM as set out at the end of this
circular

the proposals involving the granting of the General Mandates
and the re-election of the retiring Directors

the mandate to repurchase Shares as set out in the Notice of
AGM, in respect of which an explanatory statement is set out
in Appendix I to this circular




DEFINITIONS

“SFO” the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong)

“Share(s)” ordinary share(s) of HK$1.00 each in the share capital of the
Company

“Shareholder(s)” shareholder(s) of the Company

“Stock Exchange” The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

»

“substantial shareholder’ has the same meaning ascribed to such term in the Listing

Rules
“Takeovers Code” the Hong Kong Code on Takeovers and Mergers
“HK$” Hong Kong dollars, the Jawful currency of Hong Keng
“ G per cent.




LETTER FROM THE BOARD

4
CEeS.

City e-Solutions Limited

{Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 557)

Directors: Principal Office:

Mr. Kwek Leng Beng {Chairman and Managing Director) Room 2803, 28th Floor

Mr. Vincent Yeo Wee Eng (Chief Executive Officer) Great Eagle Centre

Mr. Kwek Leng Joo No. 23 Harbour Road

Mr. Kwek Leng Peck Wanchai

Mr. Gan Khai Choon ' Hong Kong

Mr. Wong Hong Ren*

Hon. Chan Bernard Charnwut* Registered Office:

Mr. Lawrence Yip Wai Lam Maples and Calder
P.O. Bex 309

Independent Directors: Grand Cayman

Dr. Lo Ka Shui* Cayman Islands

Mr. Lee Jackson {also known as Li Chik Sin)}* British West Indies

Mr. Teoh Teik Kee*

*Non-Executive Directors

26 March 2008

To the Shareholders

Dear Sir or Madam,

PROPOSALS INVOLVING
GRANTING OF GENERAL MANDATES TO ISSUE AND
REPURCHASE SHARES
AND
RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

AND
NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Introduction

The purpose of this circular is to provide you with information regarding resolutions to be
proposed at the AGM relating to the granting of the General Mandates and the re-election of the
retiring Directors. The Notice of AGM is set out on pages 13 to 16 of this circular for approving the
same.
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Issue Mandate

At the AGM, an ordinary resolution will be proposed to approve the granting of a fresh general
mandate to the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to allot and issue new Shares in the
share capital of the Company up to 20% of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issue on the date of the passing of the resolution. As at the Latest Practicable Date, there
were in issue an aggregate of 383,125,524 Shares. Assuming that no Shares are issued or repurchased
by the Company prior to the date of the AGM, such 20% will represent 76,625,104 Shares.

In addition, a further ordinary resolution will be proposed at the AGM to extend the authority
to i1ssue Shares under the Issue Mandate by an additional number representing such number cf Shares
repurchased under the Repurchase Mandate.

Repurchase Mandate

Furthermore, at the AGM, an ordinary resolution will be proposed to approve the grantiag of the
Repurchase Mandate to the Directors to exercise the powers of the Company to repurchase Shares
representing up to 10% of the aggregate nominal amount of share capital of the Company in issue on
the date of the passing of the resolution. As at the Latest Practicable Date, there were in issue an
aggregate of 383,125,524 Shares. Assuming that no Shares are issued or repurchased by the Company
prior to the date of the AGM, such 10% will represent 38,312,552 Shares.

An explanatory statement, as required by the Listing Rules to give all the information reasonably
necessary to enable the Shareholders to make an informed decision on whether to vote for or against
the resolution to approve the purchase by the Company of its own Shares, is set out in Appendix I to
this circutar.

Re-election of Directors

To ensure full compliance with the Code on Corporate Governance Practices set out in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules, executive Directors, namely, Mr. Kwek Leng Beng, Mr. Kwek Leng Peck, Mr.
Gan Khaj Choen and Mr. Lawrence Yip Wai Lam, will retire from office at the AGM and, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election for a further term of three years. Their retirement also
satisfies the rotation requirement set out in article 116 of the articles of association of the Company.
Details of the Directors proposed to be re-elected at the AGM are set out in Appendix Il to this
circular.

Procedure by which a poll may be demanded

Under the articles of association of the Company, at any general meeting, a resolution put to the
vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands uniess voting by way of poll is required by
the Listing Rules or a poll is (before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands or on
the withdrawal of any other demand for a poll) demanded:

(i) by the chairman; or
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(ii) by at least three Shareholders present in person or by proxy for the time being entitled to

vote at the meeting; or

(iii) by any Shareholder or Shareholders present in person or by proxy and representing not less
than one-tenth of the total voting rights of all the members having the right to vote at the
meeting; or

(ivy by any Shareholder or Shareholders present in person or by proxy and holding Shares
conferring a right to vote at the meeting being Shares on which an aggregate sum has been
paid up equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum paid up on all the Shares conferring
that right; or

(v) if required by the Listing Rules, by any Director or Directors who, individually or
collectively, hold proxies in respect of Shares representing 5% or more of the total voting
rights at such meeting.

A demand by a person as proxy for a member or in the case of a member being a corporation by
its duly authorised representative shall be deemed to be the same as a demand by a member.

AGM

The Notice of AGM is set out on pages 13 to 16 of this circular. Whether or not you are able to
attend the AGM, you are requested to complete and return the accompanying form of proxy in
accordance with the instructions printed thereon to the principal office of the Company at Room 2803,
28th Floor, Great Eagle Centre, No. 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong as soon as possible and
in any event not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the holding of the AGM or any
adjournment thereof, Completion and return of the form of proxy will not preclude you from attending
and voting in person at the AGM or any adjournment thereof should you so wish but the aunthority of
your proxy will be deemed to have been revoked.

Recommendation

The Directors consider that the Proposals are in the interests of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole. Accordingly, the Directors recommend you to vote in favour of the
resolutions to be proposed at the AGM in relation to the Proposals.

Yours faithfully,
For and on behalf of the Board
Kwek Leng Beng
Chairman and Managing Director




APPENDIX I EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

This Appendix serves as the explanatory statement required under Rule 10.06(1)(b) of the Listing
Rules to provide the Shareholders with all the information necessary for their consideration of the
Repurchase Mandate.

Share capital

As at the Latest Practicable Date, the issued share capital of the Company was HK$383,125,524
comprising 383,125,524 Shares., Exercise in full of the Repurchase Mandate, on the basis that no
further Shares are issued or repurchased prior to the date of the AGM, could accordingly result in up
to 38,312,552 Shares being repurchased by the Company. The Repurchase Mandate shall, unless
revoked or varied by the Company in general meeting, take effect upon approval by the Sharzholders
until the next annual general meeting of the Company.

Reasons for repurchase

The Directors consider that the Repurchase Mandate will provide the Company with such
flexibility to make repurchase of its own Shares as and when appropriate and beneficial 10 the
Company. Such repurchases may enhance the net asset value of the Company and/or earnings per
Share. The Directors consider that there would not be a material adverse impact on the working capital
and on the gearing position of the Company as compared with the position disciosed in the latest
published audited accounts of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2007, in the event that
the proposed purchases were to be carried out in full during the proposed purchase period. No
purchase would be made in circumstances that would have a material adverse impact on the working
capital or gearing ratio of the Company.

Funding of repurchase

Repurchases must be funded out of funds legally available for such purchase in accordance with
the appticable laws of the Cayman Islands and the memorandum and articles of association of the
Company.

The Companies Law provides, inter alia, that shares may only be purchased out of the profits of
a company or out of the proceeds of a fresh issue of shares made for the purpose of the repurchase
or, in the manner provided for therein, out of capital.

Directors, their associates and connected persons

None of the Directors nor, to the best of their knowledge having made all reasonable 2nquiries,
any of their respective associates, has a present intention to sell Shares to the Company if the
Repurchase Mandate is approved by the Shareholders.

No connected person of the Company has notified the Company that hefshe has a present
intention to sell Shares to the Company nor has he/she undertaken not to sell any of the Shares held
by him/her to the Company in the event that the Company is authorised to make repurchases of Shares.

— 6 —
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Undertaking of the Directors

The Directors have undertaken to the Stock Exchange to exercise the powers of the Company to
make repurchases pursuant to the proposed resolution in accordance with the Listing Rules and all
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands, and in accordance with the regulations set out in the

memorandum and articles of association of the Company.
Effect of the Takeovers Code

A repurchase of securities by the Company may result in an increase in the proportionate
interests of a Shareholder in the voting rights of the Company, which will be treated as an acquisition
for the purposes of the Takeovers Code. As a result, a Sharehoider or a group of Shareholders acting
in concert could obtain or consolidate control of the Company and become obliged to make a
mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code. As at the Latest Practicable Date
and to the best of the knowledge and belief of the Directors based on the register kept by the Company
under Section 336 of the SFO, Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd., together with parties acting
in concert with it, held, directly or indirectly, an aggregate of 230,866,817 Shares, representing about
60.26% of the existing issued share capital of the Company. Upon full exercise of the Repurchase
Mandate and assuming that no further Shares are issued or repurchased prior to the date of the AGM,
their aggregate shareholding would be increased to about 66.95%. Such an increase would not give
rise to an obligation to make a mandatory offer under Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code. The Directors
are not aware of any Shareholder, or a group of Sharcholders acting in concert, who may become
obliged to make a mandatory offer in accordance with Rule 26 of the Takeovers Code in the event that

the Directors exercise the power to repurchase Shares pursuant to the Repurchase Mandate.
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT

Share prices

The highest and lowest prices at which the Shares have been traded on the Stock Exchange

during each of the previous 12 months preceding the Latest Practicable Date were as follows:

2007

April

May

June

July
August
September
October
November
December

2008

January

February

March (up to the Latest Practicable Date)

Share repurchases made by the Company

Per Share

Highest
HK3

1.20
1.40
1.60
1.83
1.65
1.33
1.36
1.35
1.40

1.27
1.22
1.14

Lowest

HKS$

1.04
1.06
1.27
1.47
0.60
1.20
1.25
1.10
1.25

1.14
I.14
1.00

The Company has not repurchased any Shares {whether on the Stock Exchange or otherwise) in

the six (6) months preceding the Latest Practicable Date.




APPENDIX II - PARTICULARS OF DIRECTORS SUBJECT TO RE-ELECTION

The biographical and other details of the retiring Directors standing for re-election at the AGM
as required by the Listing Rules are set out below:

Mr. Kwek Leng Beng, aged 67
Chairman and Managing Director

Mr. Kwek has been the Chairman and Managing Director of the Company since 1989,

He is the Executive Chairman of the Hong Leong Group of Companies Singapare, and also
Singapore-listed City Developments Limited. He is also Chairman and Managing Director of
Singapore-listed Hong Leong Finance Limited. He is the Chairman of London-listed Millennium &
Copthorne Hotels plc and Singapore-listed Hong Leong Asia Ltd. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Kwek
did not hold any other directorships in listed public companies in the last three years.

Mr. Kwek’s achievements have also captured the attention of the academic institutions. He was
conferred Honorary Doctorate of Business Administration in Hospitality from Johnson & Wales
University (Rhode Island, US), where students have an opportunity to pursue career education in
business, hospitality, culinary arts or technology; and Honorary Doctorate from Oxford Brookes
University (UK) whose citation traced how Mr. Kwek, who joined the family business in the early
1960s, had gone on to establish an international reputation for his leadership of the Hong Leong
Group, as well as an active supporter of higher education in Singapore.

Mr, Kwek also serves as a member of the INSEAD East Asia Council. France-based INSEAD is
one of the world’s leading and largest graduate business schools which brings together people,
cultures and ideas from around the world.

Mr. Kwek is also a member of the Action Community for Entrepreneurship (ACE), which
involves both the private and public sectors to create a more entrepreneurial environment of Singapore
small and medium enterprises. Mr. Kwek holds a law degree, LL.B. (London) and is also a fellow of
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators.

Mr. Kwek is the brother of Mr. Kwek Leng Joo, brother-in-law of Mr. Gan Khai Choon, cousin
of Mr. Kwek Leng Peck and uncle of Mr. Vincent Yeo Wee Eng, all of them are directors of the
Company. Besides, Mr. Kwek is also the cousin of Mr. Kwek Leng Kee, a substantial shareholder of
the Company. He is a director and shareholder of Kwek Holdings Pte Ltd, Hong Leong Investment
Holdings Pte. Ltd., Hong Leong Holdings Limited and City Developments Limited, all being
substantial shareholders of the Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Kwek does not have any other
relationships with any directors, senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the
Company. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Kwek had personal interests in 3,286,980 Shares
within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

There is no service agreement between the Company and Mr. Kwek, and he has no fixed term
of service with the Company but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. His emoluments will be determined by the remuneration
committee with reference to his duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions. The director’s fee received by Mr. Kwek for the
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year ended 31 December 2007 was HK$750,000 which was determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing market conditions. Save as disclosed atiove, Mr.
Kwek did not receive any other emoluments from the Company for the year ended 31 December 2007,

Mr. Kwek Leng Peck, aged 51
Executive Director

Mr. Kwek has been an Executive Director of the Company since 1989. Apart from being an
Executive Director of the Company, Mr. Kwek also holds a number of directorships in other members
of the Group. He also sits on the boards of several public companies, including Singapore-listed City
Developments Limited, Singapore-listed Hong Leong Asia Ltd., Singapore-listed Hong Leong Finance
Limited, New York-listed China Yuchai International Limited, London-listed Millennium & Copthorne
Hotels ple and Malaysia-listed Tasek Corporation Berhad. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Kwek did not
hold any other directorships in listed public companies in the last three years.

Mr. Kwek has over 23 vears of experience in trading, manufacturing, property investment and
development, hote! operations, corporate finance and management. Mr. Kwek holds a Diploma in
Accountancy.

Mr. Kwek is the cousin of Messrs. Kwek Leng Beng and Kwek Leng Joo and uncle of M:. Vincent
Yeo Wee Eng, all being directors of the Company. Besides, Mr. Kwek is also the cousin of Mr. Kwek
Leng Kee, a substantial shareholder of the Company. He is a director and sharcholder of Kwek
Holdings Pte Ltd, Hong Leong Investment Holdings Pte. Ltd., Hong Leong Holdings Limitec and City
Developments Limited, all being substantial shareholders of the Company. Save as discloszd above,
Mr. Kwek does not have any other relationships with any directors, senior management or substantial
or controlling shareholders of the Company. As at the Latest Practicable Date, Mr. Kwek had a
personal interest in 2,082,200 Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

There is no service agreement between the Company and Mr. Kwek, and he has no fixed term
of service with the Company bat is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. His emoluments will be determined by the remuneration
committee with reference to his duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions. The director’s fee received by Mr. Kwek for the
year ended 31 December 2007 was HK$200,000 which was determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing market conditions. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Kwek did not receive any other emoluments from the Company for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Mr. Gan Khai Choon, aged 61
Executive Director

Mr. Gan was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in 1989 and is also Managing
Director of Hong Leong International (Hong Kong) Limited. Apart from being an Executivz Director
of the Company, Mr. Gan also holds a number of directorships in other members of the Group. He is
a director of New York-listed China Yuchai International Limited. He is also an independent
non-executive Director of Hong Kong-listed Safety Godown Company Limited and Chairman of its
Audit Committee. Mr. Gan was appointed Chairman of Singapore-listed HLG Enterprise Limited in
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September 2007. He has more than 33 years of experience in banking, real estate investment and
development. He has been responsible for overseeing the development of the Grand Hyatt Taipei and
other international projects for the Hong Leong Group of companies. Mr. Gan has a Bachelor of Arts
degree (Honours) in Economics from the University of Malaya. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Gan did
not hold any other directorships in listed public companies in the last three years.

Mr. Gan is the brother-in-law of Messrs. Kwek Leng Beng and Kwek Leng Joo, cousin-in-law
of Mr. Kwek Leng Peck and uncle of Mr. Vincent Yeo Wee Eng, all being directors of the Company.
Besides, Mr. Gan is also the cousin-in-law of Mr. Kwek Leng Kee, a shareholder of City Developments
Limited and a director of eMpire Investments Limited, all being substantial shareholders of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Gan does not have any other relationships with any directors,
senior management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. As at the Latest
Practicable Date, Mr. Gan had a personal interest in 1,041,100 Shares within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO.

There is no service agreement between the Company and Mr. Gan, and he has no fixed term of
service with the Company but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. His emoluments will be determined by the remuneration
committee with reference to his duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions. The director’s fee received by Mr. Gan for the year
ended 31 December 2007 was HK$200,000 which was determined with reference to his duties and
responsibilities with the Company and the prevailing market conditions. Save as disclosed above, Mr.
Gan did not receive any other emoluments from the Company for the year ended 31 December 2007.

Mr. Lawrence Yip Wai Lam, aged 52
Executive Director

Mr. Yip was appoinied an Executive Director of the Company in December 1998. Apart from
being an Executive Director of the Company, Mr. Yip also holds a number of directorships in other
members of the Group. He was formerly the General Manager (Finance & Administration) of the
Company. He has over 10 years of experience in the Treasury Division of several banks. Prior to
joining the Group in April 1990, Mr. Yip held the position of Regional Treasurer with a bank in
Singapore. Save as being an Executive Director of the Company, Mr. Yip did not hold directorship in
other listed public companies in the last three years.

Mr. Yip is a director of eMpire Investments Limited, being a substantial shareholder of the
Company. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yip does not have any relationships with any directors, senior
management or substantial or controlling shareholders of the Company. As at the Latest Practicable
Date, Mr, Yip had personal interests in 520,550 Shares within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO,

There is no service agreement between the Company and Mr. Yip, and he has no fixed term of
service with the Company but is subject to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. His emoluments will be determined by the remuneration
committee with reference to his duties and responsibilities with the Company, the Company’s
performance and the prevailing market conditions. The director’s fee and salaries, allowances and
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benefits in kind received by Mr. Yip for the year ended 31 December 2007 were HK$100,000 and
HK$113,000 respectively which were determined with reference to his duties and responsibilities with
the Company and the prevailing market conditions. Save as disclosed above, Mr. Yip did not receive
any other emoluments from the Company for the year ended 31 December 2007.

The Board confirms that save as disclosed above, there is no other information relating o any
of Messrs. Kwek Leng Beng, Kwek Leng Peck, Gan Khai Choon or Lawrence Yip Wai Lam which
needs to be disclosed pursuant to any of the requirements of paragraphs (h) to (v) of Rule 13.51(2)
of the Listing Rules. Further, there are no other matters which need to be brought to the attention of
the Shareholders.
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4
CEeS.

City e-Solutions Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(Stock Code: 557)

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Nineteenth Annual General Meeting of the Company will
be held at Room 2803, 28th Floor, Great Eagle Centre, No. 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
on Friday, 18 April 2008 at 10:00 a.m. for the following purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

I. To receive and consider the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries and the reports of the directors and auditors for the year ended 31 December 2007.

2.  To declare a final dividend.

3. To re-elect the following retiring directors of the Company for a specific term of three years and
to fix the directors’ remuneration:

{a) Mr. Kwek Leng Beng as an executive director;

(b) Mr. Kwek Leng Peck as an executive director;

(¢} Mr. Gan Khai Choon as an executive director; and

(d) Mr. Lawrence Yip Wai Lam as an executive director.

4. To appoint auditors for the ensuing year and authorise the directors to fix their remuneration.
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AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To consider and, if thought fit, pass, with or without modifications, the following resclutions as

ordinary resolutions of the Company:

5. “THAT:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

subject to paragraph (c) below, the exercise by the directors of the Company (the
“Directors”) during the Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all powers of the
Company to allot, issue and deal with additional shares in the capital of the Company and
to make or grant offers, agreements and options which might require the exercise of such
powers be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

the approval in paragraph (a) above shall authorise the Directors during the Relevant Period
to make and grant offers, agreements and options which would or might require shares to
be allotted after the end of the Relevant Period;

the aggregate nominal amount of share capital allotted or agreed conditionally or
unconditionally to be allotted (whether pursuant to an option or otherwise) by the Directors
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above, otherwise than pursuant to shares issued
as a result of a Rights Issue (as hereinafter defined)} or pursuant to the exercise of options
under the share option scheme of the Company or any shares allotted in lieu of the whole
or part of a dividend on shares in accordance with the articles of association of the
Company, shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital
of the Company in issue at the date of the passing of this resolution and the said approval
shall be limited accordingly; and

for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this resolution until whichever is
the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annual general meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the articles of association of the Company or any applicable
laws of the Cayman Islands to be held; or

{(iii) the revocation or variation of this resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.

“Rights Issue” means an offer of shares open for a period fixed by the Directors to holders
of shares whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on a fixed record
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date in proportion to their then holdings of such shares (subject to such exclusions or other
arrangements as the Directors may deem necessary or expedient in relation to fractional
entitlements or legal or practical problems under the laws of, or the requirements of, any
recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in any territory outside Hong Kong).”

6. “THAT:

(a) subject to paragraph (b) below, the exercise by the directors of the Company during the
Relevant Period (as hereinafter defined) of all powers of the Company to purchase its own
shares, subject to and in accordance with all applicable laws and the requirements of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited,
be and is hereby generally and unconditionally approved;

(b) the aggregate nominal amount of share capital which may be purchased by the Company
pursuant to the approval in paragraph (a) above during the Relevant Period shall not exceed
10 per cent. of the aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the Company in issue
at the date of the passing of this resolution, and the said approval be limited accordingly;
and

(¢) for the purposes of this resolution:

“Relevant Period” means the period from the passing of this resolution until whichever is
the earliest of:

(i) the conclusion of the next annval general meeting of the Company;

(ii) the expiration of the period within which the next annual general meeting of the
Company is required by the articles of association of the Company or any applicable
laws of the Cayman Islands to be held; or

(iii) the revocation or variation of this resolution by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders of the Company in general meeting.”

7. “THAT subject to the passing of resolutions numbered 5 and 6 set out in the notice convening
this meeting, the aggregate nominal amount of shares which are purchased by the Company
pursuant to the authority granted to the directors of the Company (the “Directors”) as mentioned
in resolution numbered 6 set out in the notice convening this meeting shall be added to the
aggregate nominal amount of share capital that may be allotted or agreed to be ailotted by the
Directors pursuant to resolution numbered 5 set out in the notice convening this meeting.”

By order of the Board
Kwek Leng Beng
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, 26 March 2008
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Principal office: Registered office:
Room 2803, 28th Floor Maples and Calder
Great Eagle Centre P.O. Box 309

No. 23 Harbour Road Grand Cayman
Wanchai Cayman Islands
Hong Kong British West Indies
Notes;

(1) The register of members of the Company will be closed from 16 April 2008 to |8 April 2008, both days inclusive, during

()

(3)

(4)

(5

which no transfer of shares will be registered. In order to qualify for the final dividend, payable on or before 16 May
2008, to be approved at the Annual General Meeting, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificases must
be lodged with the Company’s branch share registrars, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited, at Shops
1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchail, Hong Kong not later than 4:00 p.m. on 15
April 2008.

Any member of the Company entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint one or more prixies to

attend and vote on his behalf. A proxy need not be a member of the Company.

If the appointer is a corporation, the form of proxy must be under its common seal or under the hand of an officer or

atterney duly authorised on its behalf.

Where there are joint registered holders of any share of the Company, any one of such holders may vole at the Meeting,
either personally or by proxy, in respect of such share as if he were solely entitled thereto, but if more than one of such
joint hoiders are present at the Meeting personally or by proxy, that one of such holders so present whose name stands

first on the register of members of the Company in respect of such share shall alone be eatitled to vote in respect thereof.

To be valid, the form of proxy, together with the power of attorncy or other authority (if any) under which it is signed
or a notarially certified copy thereof, must be deposited at the Company’s principal office at Room 2803, 28th Floor,
Great Eagle Centre, No. 23 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for the
holding of the Meeting or any adjournment thereof. Completion and return of the form of proxy shall not preclude a
member from attending and voting in person at the Meeting and, in such event, the instrument appointing a proxy shall

be deemed to have been revoked.
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